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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board") of Willie International Holdings
Limited (the "Company"”), | am pleased to present to the shareholders the results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2010 (the "“Year").

FINAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group’s turnover was approximately HK$56 million compared to
approximately HK$94 million last year. The drop in turnover was mainly attributed to
the decrease in net gains from the sale of investments and the decrease in rental
and interest income. Details of the breakdown of the turnover can be seen on note

5 to the consolidated financial statements.

2010 was a year marked by uncertainty and volatility. The Group’s loss attributable
to shareholders for the Year was approximately HK$169 million as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$129 million last year. The loss was mainly attributed by
net fair value losses on trading of investments held, losses on disposal of interest in
subsidiaries and share of associates losses. Details of the breakdown of the
segmental results can be seen on note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
Loss per share for the Year was HK$0.84 (2009 (restated): earnings per share of
HK$1.40).

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year (2009:
Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS

Business Review
Year 2010 was mixed with challenges and opportunities to the Group. Major lines of
business of the Group operated under different economic environments and

achieved different results.

Hit by global worries about Europe'’s sovereign debt crisis, currency woes and
geopolitical tension in North-South Korea despite subsequently rejuvenated by QE2
from the Fed, the securities market was volatile in year 2010. The securities trading
segment reported a loss of approximately HK$ 100 million for the Year as a result of

net fair value losses for securities held and not yet sold at the year end.
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Fueled by excessive liquidity and exceptionally low interest rates, the property
investment segment continued to contribute a positive return of approximately
HK$73 million arising from the net fair value gains on investment properties. By
consolidating the property portfolio with higher quality properties and investment
potential, the Group acquired the entire 2 [st and 23rd floor of China United Centre
in North Point, a residential property in Pinewood Garden and a rural land in
Australia and disposed of its sole commercial premise in the PRC. The Group also
grasped the property market boom to materialise the capital appreciation by selling
three luxury properties in Hong Kong Island. All the considerations were satisfied by
cash with the exception of the PRC property which was satisfied by consideration

shares.

Provision of financial services maintained a stable interest income and earned a
profit of approximately HK$28 million of which approximately HK$16 million came

from the reversal of previous allowance for doubtful debts.

The Group has investment in associated companies with principal business in
investment in properties, money lending and securities trading. They recorded loss
results in year 2010 and the share of associates losses attributable to the Group was

approximately HK$85 million.

Year in Review and Prospect

2010 was anything but a “normal” year. It is a year full of disasters and major
catastrophes, both natural and man-made. Major disasters such as the earthquake
that hit Haiti in January killed more than 220,000 people, the Russian heat wave and
fire that destroyed a third of the country’s wheat supply, and the flooding in Pakistan
that rendered almost one-fifth of the country's total land area underwater to name
a few. Not to mention the earthquake in Qinghai province in China, the volcano
explosion in Iceland, the severe flooding in Tennessee and Mississippi in USA, and the
drought that hit much of the farmland of North China Plain. On top of that, we have
witnessed the worst oil spill in the US history, the BP Mexican Gulf oil spill.

2011 greeted us with the severe snow storm that covered much of New York and
many parts of Europe that essentially put a halt to air traffic, then we watched in
disbelief on our television set of the devastated earthquake and the subsequent
tsunami that affected the Sendai area in Japan and cast the whole world into fear of

radiation contamination and a nuclear meltdown.

Towards the end of the Year and into the beginning of 201 |, political unrest, protests,
and revolution started in Tunisia which resulted in the president going into exile. But
that momentum has not stopped, soon it spread to Egypt, Libya, Bahrain, and even

attempted protests in China.
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In the midst of all these disasters and political unrests, commodity prices have
rocketed with many reaching new highs. Oil price is again hovering around US$100
per barrel. Inflation is inevitable and is putting a damper on the economic recoveries

of many countries.

Here at home, we too are faced with inflation and with rising prices on essentials
such as food and housing. We have seen local protests on taxes, educational systems,
elderly allowance, minimum wages, subsidised housing development, sports funding
etc. and even to the extent of calling for the resignations of certain government
officials. In fact, we have so many protests, large or small, that seem like it is
becoming an event every Sunday. We have political factions that scream and toss
unwarranted objects at each other during legislative sessions. Perhaps that is just the
public’'s way of venting their frustrations and keeping the politicians on their toes,

the right or wrong of which | do not intend to comment.

| may have sounded like that the end of the world is coming soon as depicted in the
movie “2012" . That is not the case. Surely the economy will recover slower than we
originally anticipated and surely there are still “great uncertainties”, but tomorrow is
always “uncertain”. As | said in the 2008 annual report, “Hong Kong has seen its
political and financial crisis in the past, but our people have always stood up to the
challenge...... and achieve sustainable development”. We have gone through the
1997 Handover and the real estate crash, we have gone through SARS, and the
global financial tsunami, and yet we have a government awash in fiscal surplus, so

much so that it is giving HK$24 billion back to its residents.

| have talked about a “conservative approach” in the last few years, but | think that
the time is right that we employ a more aggressive approach to investing. | feel an
abundance of opportunities. During the past few months, | have been approached
with more investment proposals than | have seen for a long time and many of which
warrant further studies and evaluations. There are proposals on oil and gas projects,
coal mining projects, environmental or alternative energy projects such as solar
energy and fuel saving devices, as well as other mining projects in emerald, gold,
copper etc. and there are also real estate projects and other finance proposals. The
Directors and | have evaluated projects from as close as home to as far as the
African continent. Our Company is strong in liquidity and the timing is right to

capture investment opportunities that can enhance the shareholders’ return.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity

During the Year, apart from additions through acquisition of subsidiaries, the Group
invested approximately HK$38 million in property, plant and equipment,
approximately HK$27 million in artworks and approximately HK$104 million in
investment properties of which HK$83 million was financed from bank borrowings
with the rest from internal resources. In addition to disposal of subsidiaries, the
Group also disposed of investment properties in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$149 million in cash. The Group also obtained additional bank
loans of approximately HK$45 million and repaid approximately HK$100 million

bank borrowings during the Year.

In November 2010, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Cordoba
Homes Limited (“Cordoba”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to grant a loan
of HK$150 million to Cordoba for the purpose of repayment of the outstanding
shareholder’s loan due to it when Cordoba ceases to be a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. In December 2010, the shareholder’s loan was then
converted into the loan which bears an interest at prime rate per annum payable
quarterly in arrears and is repayable within one year. In the same month, the
Company disposed of the convertible note issued by Cordoba at face value of
HK$120 million in cash. For further details, please refer to the section headed

“Material Disposals” below.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any secured bank borrowings
(2009: approximately HK$295 million classified as current liabilities) after Cordoba
ceasing to be a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in December 2010.
During the Year, the Group'’s bank borrowings carrying interest rates were calculated
with reference to prime rate and HIBOR and denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group did not have any financial instruments used for hedging purpose.

As most of the Group's transactions and bank balances were denominated in Hong

Kong dollars, the Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate was minimal.
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As at 3| December 2010, the Group's total equity amounted to approximately
HK$1,989 million (2009: approximately HK$2,530 million) and had net current assets
of approximately HK$1,370 million including cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$317 million (2009: approximately HK$ 1,325 million including cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$196 million). The Group has nil gearing
ratio (2009: 3.9% which is computed on the basis of net borrowings to total equity) and
current ratio of 393 times (2009 (restated): 5.3 times).

Capital Resources and Reorganisation

During the Year, the Company has completed four share placements issuing in total
about 823 million ordinary shares at placing prices ranging from HK$0.165 to
HK$0.450 per share raising aggregate net proceeds of about HK$205 million for the
general working capital and future potential investments of the Group. In March
2010, the Company granted 59.74 million share options at an exercise price of
HK$0.375 per share, all of which were exercised raising an additional capital of

approximately HK$22 million in the same month.

Subsequent to the year end, a special resolution for approving the capital
reorganisation, which involved capital reduction and share consolidation of five
reduced shares into one adjusted share was passed at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on |6 March 201 1. As a result, the authorised share capital
of the Company was reduced from HK$1,000,000,000 to HK$20,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 adjusted shares of HK$0.01 each and the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced from HK$148,034,983 to HK$2,960,699.66 divided into
296,069,966 adjusted shares, giving rise to a total of credit of HK$145,074,283.34

which will, in its entirety, be credited to the share premium account of the Company.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION

In May 2010, the Group entered into a conditional agreement to acquire the entire
interest in Sunny Soar Investments Limited for the principal assets of its subsidiaries,
being the entire of 2Ist Floor of China United Centre in North Point at a cash
consideration of HK$52 million which was partly financed by bank borrowings and
partly from internal resources. Upon Cordoba becoming the Company's associate in
December 2010 with details mentioned in the section headed “Material Disposals”
below, Sunny Soar Investments Limited (being a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Cordoba) ceased to be an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
December 2010.
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MATERIAL DISPOSALS

In March 2010, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement with a third
party, Forefont Group Limited (“Forefront”) to dispose of the entire interest in
Perfect Time Investments Limited, an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, for the principal asset of its subsidiary, being a commercial premise in the
PRC, at an agreed consideration which was satisfied by the issuance of 400 million

new shares of Forefront at HK$0.15 per share on completion date.

In November 2010, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
dispose of a redeemable convertible note in the principal amount of HK$ 120 million
issued by Cordoba to a third party at face value in cash. The sale proceeds were
used to strengthen the financial position and liquidity of the Company for its
potential acquisition or expansion of its existing business. The transaction was
completed in December 2010 and the convertible note was subsequently converted
into 200 million ordinary shares of Cordoba in full by the note-holder. Upon full
conversion of the convertible note, the shareholding in Cordoba held by the
Company was then diluted from 55.27% to 49.38% in which Cordoba became an
associated company of the Company. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of Cordoba
and its subsidiaries were no longer consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements. After that, another third party subscribed 400 million ordinary shares of
Cordoba leading to further dilution of the equity interest of the Company in
Cordoba to 40.71%. Further details of these disposals are set out in the notes 32

and 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$678 million (2009:
approximately HK$886 million) were pledged to certain financial institutions and
brokers to secure certain margin financing facilities amounted to approximately
HK$317 million (2009: approximately HK$446 million) granted to the Group which
were not utilised (2009: approximately HK$4 million was utilised).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had capital commitments in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements amounting to approximately HK$0.! million (2009:
approximately HK$62 million in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment

and investment properties).
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CONTINGENT LIABLITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company had provided corporate
guarantee facilities of approximately HK$360 million committed in favour of certain
banks for securing bank loan facilities granted to its associates (2009: approximately
HK$320 million granted to its subsidiaries), which were utilised to the extent of
approximately HK$316 million (2009: approximately HK$283 million). The Group and
the Company has charged a corporate guarantee fee of 1.5% per annum payable
monthly in arrears by Cordoba on the average daily outstanding amount of the

aggregate principal of bank loans.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed 32 employees (2009: 29 employees)
excluding directors. The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, working experience and prevailing market standards. Employee
benefits include medical insurance coverage, mandatory provident fund and share

option scheme.

APPRECIATION
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders of the Company
for your continuing support and we also thank our dedicated staff for their

contributions to the Group.

By order of the Board

Willie International Holdings Limited

Dr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry

Chairman

30 March 201 |
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry, aged 55, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Company in 2002. He holds Master's degrees in Petroleum Engineering and in
Business Administration from the University of Southern California in the United
States of America. In 2007, Dubna University of Russia awarded Dr. Chuang an
Honorary Doctorate degree in Petroleum Engineering in recognition of his
achievements in the field of petroleum engineering. He has over 18 years of
experience in corporate finance and development. He is also the Deputy Chairman
and a Non-executive Director of Mascotte Holdings Limited, a company listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange").

Mr.Wong Ying Seung, Asiong, aged 60, was appointed as a Director of the Company
in 2002 and as the Vice Chairman of the Company in January 201 I. He holds a
Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering from the University of London in the

United Kingdom. He has over 30 years of experience in banking and investment.

Mr. King Phillip, aged 40, was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company
in 2005. He holds a Master's degree in Business Administration from the University
of San Francisco in the United States of America. He has over 20 years of

experience in real estate investment, management and development.

Mr.Wang Lin, aged 56, was appointed as a Director of the Company in 2006. He
studied Electronics from the Yunnan Radio and TV University. He is an Economist by

profession with over 30 years of experience in accounting and finance.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wing Ping, aged 44, was appointed as a Director of the Company in
2009. He is an accounting manager of an investment holding company and has over
20 years of experience in auditing and accounting fields. He holds a Bachelor's
degree in Accountancy with honours from City University of Hong Kong and is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an

associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 42, was appointed as a Director of the Company in 2006. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering from the Fudan University,
Shanghai in the People’s Republic of China as well as a Master's degree in Chinese
Law from the Jilin University in the People's Republic of China. He is a Senior
Economist by profession and has over |8 years of experience in corporate finance

and investment banking. Mr. Liu is the President of a fund management company

clled REEALERESEE AT

Mr.Wen Louis, aged 76, was appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009. He
holds a Bachelor's degree in Engineering from the City University of New York. He
has an extensive experience in engineering, marketing and advertising in the United
States where he held senior positions in J. Walter Thompson Co. and Dow Jones
International Marketing Services for a number of years. He is an Executive Director

of Forefront Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr.Yau Yan Ming, Raymond, aged 42, was appointed as a Director of the Company
in 2006. He holds a Master's degree in Science majoring in Japanese business studies
and Bachelor's degree in Business Administration majoring in accounting in the
United States of America. He is a Certified Public Accountants both in Hong Kong
and in the United States of America and is also a Certified Tax Adviser in Hong
Kong. He is also an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also a
fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 14 years of
working experience in the areas of auditing, accounting, taxation, company
secretarial, corporate finance and financial management. He is a Chairman and
Executive Director of iMerchants Limited and an Independent Non-executive
Director of Birmingham International Holdings Limited, both are publicly listed

companies in Hong Kong.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) submits their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010

(the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the business of property investment, investment
in securities trading, money lending and investment holding. Details of the principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 17

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income on pages 29 and 30.

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 35 to 37 and note

29 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past

five financial years is set out on pages 147 and 148.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of significant changes in the investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 14 and |5 respectively

to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in note 26 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the
Year are set out in notes 28 and 30 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 December 2010, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries has outstanding share options.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive Directors
Chuang Yueheng, Henry
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong
King Phillip

Wang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cheung Wing Ping

Liu Jian

Wen Louis

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

In accordance with Article 120 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Cheung Wing Ping, Mr. Wen Louis and Mr. Wang Lin retire by rotation and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director is for a period of
three years but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting do not have service contracts which are not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), were as

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 3|

December 2010:

BIUFATESZZEHA=F - HAREBAR
AZAEBERARRBRAE LREERLE
BET - NEERRBFAS LERZERE
E2EF  WEIUARBFAR—FANE
BECEEMERN MELZRBEELD -

EERROREBRD CESZRKXR

“E-FHEt-_AZt-R ARAEER
TETBRABRALAZAREZE (EER
& R E R ([ 5 R E B EXVER)
B~ HER O REFPHEFERERAR
ARIEE S RS GO E352&F E 2 Bl
FRELEMETACEZTETEFR S 2RE
SR (MREST R RA AR B R Bt S 2 1
HRARWT :

R=Z-2F+=A=t-A
BREABRGZFEMT

CRAREER

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage

Name of Director Nature of interest shares held of shareholding

ExEE BEME FEERREE RESNEIL

Chuang Yueheng, Henry Beneficial interest 23,353,440% 1.58%
HRE TS

* adjusted to 4,670,688 shares upon the Company’s capital reorganisation effective on 17
March 201 1.

At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time

during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, no interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital and
underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the register of interests

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, no person, other than the
director of the Company, whose interests are set out herein this report, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong to all staff.
Under the MPF Scheme, employer and employees are each required to make

contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the Year, the percentages of the Group’s turnover, excluding the net gains from
the sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss, attributable to its largest

customer and five largest customers were 35% and 57% respectively.

Heritage International Holdings Limited, the substantial shareholder (during the Year)
of the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Heritage Group”) is
one of the five largest customers of the Group referred to above. In the opinion of
the Directors, transactions with Heritage Group were carried out on terms no less

favourable than terms with independent third parties.
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As the Group had no significant purchases during the Year, the information on major

suppliers is not presented.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the Year did a director, an associate of a
director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors of the Company owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share

capital) have any material interest in any of the Group's five largest customers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of
the Company, or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the Year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for each of the three years
ended 3| December 2010 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited, Certified Public
Accountants. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Willie International Holdings Limited

Dr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry

Chairman

30 March 2011
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to maintain
high standards of corporate governance, integrity and to ensure transparent and
adequate levels of disclosure. The Company has complied with all Code Provisions
set out in Appendix |4 Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "Code”) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) throughout the year ended
31 December 2010.

The Board will continue to review and recommend such steps as appropriate in a

timely manner in order to comply with the requirements of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the requirements for director’s securities
transactions stated in the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code") in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All
Directors of the Company has confirmed that they have complied with the

requirements as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING
The Board is comprised of eight members as at the date of this report and their

positions are as follows:

Executive Directors

Chuang Yueheng, Henry (Chairman)
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong (Vice Chairman)
King Phillip (Managing Director)

Wang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cheung Wing Ping

Liu Jian

Wen Louis

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond
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The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall business strategy, management
planning and control of the Company. The management is responsible for day-to-day
management of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). All
Directors have accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to carry out their
duties in an efficient and effective manner. Details of the backgrounds and
qualifications of the Directors are set out in the section headed "Biographies of
Directors” on pages |2 and |3 of this annual report. None of the members of the

Board have, in any respect, relation to each other in any circumstances.

All Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for the best interests of the
Company and the stakeholders of the Company. Other than the statutory duties
imposed on each of them, all of the Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
the corporate matters of the Company and have provided grave concern, sufficient

time and attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the Group.

For the sake of transparency and independency of the management of the Company,
duties of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are segregated and not executed by the same individual. The Chairman is
responsible for the management of the Board and external corporate
communication. The Vice Chairman serves as the deputy to the Chairman. The
Managing Director is responsible for the day-to-day operation, among other matters,

the implementation of overall strategy of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed by reference to their
respective qualification and experience to ensure that they are competent to
perform their duties and to protect the interests of the stakeholders. The
independent non-executive Directors were appointed with specific term by the
Company and they are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the
independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board assessed and concluded that all the independent non-executive

Directors are independent under the definition of the Listing Rules.
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The Board held thirteen full board meetings in 2010. Details of the attendance of

the Board members are as follows:

Executive Directors Attendance
Chuang Yueheng, Henry 10/13
King Phillip 13/13
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong [3/13
Wang Lin 13/13
Independent Non-executive Directors Attendance
Cheung Wing Ping 13/13
Liu Jian [/13
Wen Louis 13/13
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 13/13

Save for regular board meetings held in 2010, meetings of the Directors were held
to discuss and transact other special businesses. The Board members are provided
with appropriate and sufficient information in a timely manner to keep abreast of
the Group’s latest developments. All businesses transacted at the board meetings

are properly documented and recorded.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal induction to
ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding of (i) the business and
operations of the Group; (ii) his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements; (iii) the Compliance Manual of the

Company and (iv) the Model Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was formed in June 2005. The Company formulated written terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee and the adopted terms of reference are in

compliance with the Code Provision B.1.3.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among others, are (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and (i) to review the special
remuneration packages of all executive Directors by reference to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the remuneration package for the

Directors, senior management and general staff of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee is comprised of two

independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director, namely:

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong (Chairman)
Wen Louis
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2010. Details of the attendance

of the Remuneration Committee meeting are set out below:

Committee members Attendance
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong [/
Wen Louis [/
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond [/1
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee for the appointment of
directors. The Board is empowered under the Company’s articles of association to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
member of the Board. Candidates to be selected and recommended are those who
are experienced, competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary duties and duties of skill,
care and diligence to a standard required for listed companies' Directors. By
convention, a proposal for the appointment of a new director with detailed
information of his/her educational and professional qualifications and the relevant
working experience is submitted to the Board for decision making. The Board
believes that it has sufficient measures to evaluate the proposed appointment and to

conclude their decision objectively.

At every annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement

at least once every three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was established in
January 2003 and written terms of reference were formulated. The primary duties of

the Audit Committee, among others, are:

(i)  to communicate with the management of the Company from time to time;
(i) to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company;
(i) to review the effectiveness of its internal control systems; and

(iv) to review the interim and annual results of the Group.
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The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors as at

the date of this report, namely:

Cheung Wing Ping (Chairman)
Wen Louis
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Audit Committee met two times
with the external auditor and/or representatives of the management of the
Company. The attendance records of each Audit Committee member in 2010 are

set out below:

Committee members Attendance
Cheung Wing Ping 212
Wen Louis 2/2
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 212

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s unaudited interim results of the six
months ended 30 June 2010 and audited annual results for the financial year ended
31 December 2010 with the conclusion that the preparations of such results have

been complied with the applicable accounting standards.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the external
auditor and reviewing any non-audit services performed by the external auditor.
During the vear, the remuneration paid and payable to the Company’s auditor,

Mazars CPA Limited for the provision of services as follows:

RAREAHERZBESM -2 BUFHNTE
AN B

REF ()

PoE S

B B 8
REE-Z—SF+-_A=+—HIFE &
&%E@ ISNEZEE K, AN ERER
REBTMATSE — T SERERLZES
KEzE@Z M ELeEFmT

ZEERE HE =
RERF 212
Pt 212
B B 8 22
BRLECeCENARTEE S 24 A

= AR 2 A BB R RS -

~TE+- ATt BUEMEEEZEER
EEEH  ARARSEE I BUHAERZ
&R -

SR EE
ERZESRERIIERBMZEn iR
SMNEG BRI 2 ERERERE - £ B
AAREZEEEESHMEHHIARAR D
RIS REMBREHS T -

Audit services “ERH HK$ 1,440,000 7 7T

Non-audit services (including tax services and review FZE R
of interim report and financial information) (BERBRELREBTRERERMEBERN)  HK$605,600 BT
HK$2,045,600 & 7T




INTERNAL CONTROLS

[t is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Group maintains a sound and
effective system of internal controls. The Company has formulated and adopted a
Compliance Manual and Accounting Procedures to enhance better internal control
and such Compliance Manual and Accounting Procedures would be reviewed by the
Company from time to time. The Company has also implemented practical and
effective control systems with reporting lines, reporting, responsibilities and proper
procedures. The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system which covers all material controls, including

financial, operational and compliance control.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and believe that these statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs and of its results. The responsibilities of
the Directors and Auditor are set out on pages 27 to 28 of this Annual Report. The
Board has adopted appropriate accounting policies and made proper estimates for

the preparation of financial statements.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief
and having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cause significant doubt upon
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board therefore continues
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the financial statements for the

financial year of 2010.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has established the following channels to communicate with

shareholders:

(i) corporate information is made available on its own website (http://

www.willie273.com);

(i) company announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and its own

website; and

(i) printed corporate communication such as annual report, interim report,

circulars and listing documents are sent to the shareholders.

Individual resolution has been proposed by the Chairman in the general meetings
for each substantial issue. At the general meetings of the Company, the Chairman of
the Company and/or the members of the Board were available to answer questions

raised by the shareholders.

VOTING BY POLL

All resolutions put forward at the general meetings of the Company were voted by
way of poll and the announcements on the poll vote results were made by the
Company after the respective general meetings in the manner prescribed under

Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Willie International Holdings Limited

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

Vice Chairman

30 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ 12 BiEM ¥R &

MAZARS

To the shareholders of
Willie International Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Willie International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set
out on pages 29 to 146, which comprise the consolidated and the Company's
statement of financial position as at 3| December 2010, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Mazars CPA LIMITED

G o ot 05 5 7 4 LA
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

VS VA P VT 1 SR T BRI M 408

HREABEBERARQARE
(REREMKLZBERAF])

EEEERHNRE29EF 1468 2 B M ER 2
BRARAR ([ERR]) REAMBAR (BHEA
[BEREEaPBERE  EFEAN_F—

TE+ A=+ - BZEAUBRRERERK

BERAZHMBMRRNBE  BEXBLFE KR
ARENER FARREPRREARER
BX ARIBEABRBEREMERESR
£t o

A

ESHGEMBBREREZER

BERRESFAREREREGTMAGRML
BRERBHREEUNRBEARKIGHREER
FHGEEHMBERER  YRREESEARVLEN
ABEE  MEFSMBRRNZRIAFHER
RERFFRFBRME W2 BEAFHRRAL °

V%%ZEE
FLEANREESZEY
%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ° %Zﬁ

#%“§%%Z%%V% WE @°%%
ﬁwgﬂmﬁkTLFﬁﬁ WREARHTE
% NEEGESSVBHRRAREIAFEEX
R BRI -

27



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2010 Annual Report

Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ 2 ElEM ¥R &=

28

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 3| December 2010 and of
the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793
Hong Kong, 30 March 201 |
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #R&ZHEW @K

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —EERNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P EE TR TET
Turnover e 5 55,698 94,451
Other income HAA 6 39,822 19,412
Depreciation and amortisation expense FEREHES D (29,861) (24,868)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts, net RRBERE DR 23(b) 15,601 54,043
Employee benefits expense BERAZH (10,533) (10,141)
Other operating expenses Hofth 84 = {1 (39,166) (23,868)
Net losses on disposal of interest in subsidiaries & B Bl & 2 BEFHE 32 (47,579) (26,588)
Net fair value losses on investments HIEEEREZ
held for trading NHEEEFE (107,899) (51,563)
Net fair value gains on investments designated ~ R B XERRIEERZATE
as at fair value upon initial recognition SIBR 2 /& 2 N TEW R FER 1,471 89,697
Loss on deemed disposal of interest in associates 1% {F H & H & A 7w < B 18 (18,971) —
Loss on deemed disposal of interest 1R 1 & KR 1E I
in jointly controlled entities ERERCER = (734)
Share of results of associates MR AR 2 & 20 (84,940) (1,484)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities EIEERZEHER 2 XE = 5,662
Net gains arising from changes in fair value REWMELATEE
of investment properties PES 2 e 558 14 43,68 19,227
Finance costs BE A 8 (10,018) (9.961)
(Loss) Profit before taxation BRBtA (B58) &7 9 (192,694) 133,285
Taxation 1A Il (2,905) (3.940)
(Loss) Profit for the year FR (BE) &F 12 (195,599) 129,345
Other comprehensive income (loss): Hith2EBA (B18)
Exchange differences on translation MERINR I E £
of foreign operation EHERE — )
Translation reserve realised upon disposal HE —KM B2 AR
of a subsidiary BEERLGERE 32(a) 794 —

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year FRZMHE (E1E) WAL (194,805) 129,341
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SEEEWER

2010 2009
—g-%5  -TThE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P &E TR TET

(Loss) Profit for the year attributable to: FERTHALEML (BE) aFl
Equity holders of the Company RRRERTEAA (169,285) 129,345
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 (26,314) —
(195,599) 129,345

Total comprehensive (loss) income THALELGZE
attributable to: (B18) WAL

Equity holders of the Company ARARERTEA (168,849) 129,341
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 (25,956) —
(194,805) 129,341
(Restated)
(Loss) Earnings per share Bk (B8) B (&73)
— Basic and Diluted —ERRE#E 13 (HK$0.84 7 7T) HKS$1.40 7 7T




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #r&

2010 T35 BAEBERERAT

&8 ﬁ%ﬂﬁ R

At31 December 2010 R=E—ZF+-A=+—H
At 31 At 31 At |
December December January
2010 2009 2009
R-B-FF R-FTAF R-TENF
t=ZB=t—H +ZA=+—H —H—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
P &E TERT TR TERT
(Restated) (Restated)
(251) (&731)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REME |4 — 638,773 609,814
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE |5 5,343 224,805 194,961
Intangible assets B RE 18 — — 131,879
Other investments EMigE 19 — 146,430 123,521
Interest in associates A NSE 20 583,281 183,459 —
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHERBEE 21 26,020 27,061 —
Prepayments for acquisition BERAMERN
of investment properties IR = — 5,304
Loans receivable FEWE R 23 4,000 13,849 15,720
618,644 1,234,377 1,081,199
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value BATEGABR
through profit or loss s EE 22 677,842 886,347 369,232
Loans receivable FEWE R 23 198,280 133,605 234,238
Other receivables Hft e W 5108 24 179,887 416,223 44,396
Cash and cash equivalents RekBe%HE 317,478 196,419 167,057
1,373,487 1,632,594 814,923
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FE MBI RR

At 31 At 31 At |
December December January
2010 2009 2009
R=2-%F H-FTEIAF RTINS
+=B=t+-B +-A=t+-8 —A—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TAET FAETT FHETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
Current liabilities REEE
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss MBaRE — — 12,270
Other payables H Al fE IR 25 3,467 11,496 23,242
Tax payable JE B X 28 688 1,237
Interest-bearing borrowings FTRER 26 = 295,369 293421
3,495 307,553 330,170
Net current assets ERBEE 1,369,992 1,325,041 484,753
Total assets less current liabilities BEEHBRRB AR 1,988,636 2559418 1,565,952
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEMEEE 27 — 29,398 25,439
NET ASSETS FEE 1,988,636 2,530,020 1,540,513
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %r& Bt ﬁ%ﬂﬁ MR

At 31 December 2010 R=E—FF+=-A=+—A
i |

At 31 At 31 At |
December December January
2010 2009 2009
R-Z-FF ﬁé:%;ﬂi R-ZTNF
t=A=+-8B +=ZA=+-— —A—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i &t TREx TR TERT
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z51) (871)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARREE
Share capital LN 28 148,035 59,745 38,996
Reserves i 1,840,601 1,868,567 1,501,517
Equity attributable to equity AREERFTEA
holders of the Company JE 5 7 5 1,988,636 1,928,312 1,540,513
Non-controlling interests FIERE R = 601,708 —
TOTAL EQUITY HrE s 1,988,636 2,530,020 1,540,513
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 201 | HEEeN -—E——E=-A=-+HHLERE
RETIE
King Phillip Wong Ying Seung, Asiong
EE 3 T
Director Director

EF EF




WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2010 Annual Report
Statement of Financial Position Bt#&iRk R iR FE

At 3| December 2010 R —E—ZF+-A=1+—H

2010 2009
—2-BF  —2EAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B e TERT FHETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ENKEE 21 3,020 3,020
Convertible note receivable — loan component ~ FEWAI ik E & — ERE 5 16 — 103,827
Interest in associates RN 20 583,281 —
Interest in subsidiaries BB AR |7 1,033,393 1,568,449
1,619,694 1,675,296
Current assets REEE
Convertible note receivable — option derivatives [EM TR EH —HREITET AR 16 — 65,898
Other receivables H e Wi 5k08 24 160,049 276
Cash and cash equivalents RekBesE 176,101 49,140
336,150 115314
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H fth &~ 51 25 2,145 8,269
Net current assets EREBEE 334,005 107,045
NET ASSETS FEE 1,953,699 1,782,341
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E
Share capital LN 28 148,035 59,745
Reserves fFE 29 1,805,664 1,722,596
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 1,953,699 1,782,341
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 201 | HESEN T ——F=A=THHRAERK
RETIE
King Phillip Wong Ying Seung, Asiong
TERB Rl
Director Director

EF EF
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Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARARBEAARE

Convertible Non-
Share Share Capital note equty ~ Warrant  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total  interests Total
TERE  AREE
R BROEE AARE BESHES #f EiRR ZdBR Bt FERER 5t
HK$000  HK$000  HKF000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Thr TEn TEr TEn TEr TEn TEr TEn  TERL  TER
(Notea)  (Noteb) (Note d)
(Wifa)  (HiEb) (HtiE o)
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-F—H  389% 274925 10075 — B (790) (1329300) 1540513 — 1540513
Profit for the year EREN — - - — - — 195 1934 — 1935
Other comprehensive ERHEM2E
loss for the year BB
Exchange differences on AEINEBEEN
tranlation of foreign operation ~~ EHEE 4) - (4) = (4)
Total comprehensive (loss) En2E (B8
income for the year WA%E — - - = = (4) 1935 1934l — 19
Transactions with equity holders ~ EERZFEARS
Placement of new shares, REMR -
net of expenses BB 7799 67,466 = = = = = 75,265 = 75,265
Issue of convertible note, KTuakER -
net of expenses BARRAR - — — 6140 = — — 6140 — 6140
Issue of shares upon conversion of ~ SHERN BB E R %L
convertile note, net of expenses A+ EABAER 12950 170243 - (61240) - - — 115953 — 115953
Expiry of warrants AREEHR - - — — () - — — —
Non-controlling interests RIEME
arising from EAREEH
deemed disposal of subsidiaries  FEFEMREER = - - - - - - — 601708 601,708
Total transactions with equity holders EERFHEARZAE 20749 237709 — — () — T8 258458 601708 860,166
At 31 December 2009 R-FENF
+ZA=t-A 59,745 2986963 10,075 = = (794) (1127677) 1928312 601,708 2530020
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARBEAARL

Share Non-
Share Share  Capital option  Translation Accumulated controlling
copital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total

kx RORE H4EE BRERGE Eigk ZHBR 4 FERRR AW
Notes ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
it Tén TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx FTEn TR TEn
(Notea) ~ (Noteb)  (Notec)  (Noted)
(WiEa) (WiEb) (WaEc) (M&Ed)

At | ancary 2010 H-2-25-A-8 9745 298696 1007 — (%) (LI76T) 19830 60LT08 253000
Loss for the yar ERER - - S (e (16085)  (6314)  (195599)
Other comprehensive income EREMRE

for the year WA

Translation reserve reclised &~ RN B2 A

upon disposal of a subsidiary ERENGE = = = — 436 — 436 358 794

Total comprehensive income ER2EHA

(o5 for the year (8) 88 - _ _ — g6 (19265) (168849)  (595) (194805)

Transactions with equity holders RREREARG

Placement of new shares, REHR 28(a), (b),

net of expenses I (0&() 82316 122,982 - - - — 20529 — 20529
Equity-settled share-based IR

payment RIARHR 30 = = = 1,514 = = 1,514 = 1514
Issue of shares under share option REERES 2T

scheme, net of expenses ki BARAR 30 5974 17,901 = (1,514) = — 3%l — 3%l
Non-controlling interests derecognised B EHERE

due to disposal of interest in ARARRENEAR

Cordoba Homes Limited and its ((hEKE]) Mk

subsidiaries ("Cordoba Group") M RER - - - - 358 (358) —  (57575)  (575,752)
Total transactions with equity holders ERHEEARSAH 88290 140,883 - - 358 (358) 229,173 (575752)  (346,579)
At 31 December 2010 N-%-%2%

tZA=1-H 148,035 3,127,846 10,075 — — (1297,320) 1,988,636 — 1,988,636
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Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

Notes:

—
[
=

The application of the share premium account is governed by Section 48B of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

The capital reserve was arisen from acquisition of interest in subsidiaries in prior years.

The share option reserve comprises of the fair value of unexercised share options

granted to eligible parties under the Company’s share option scheme.

The translation reserve comprises of all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign operation into the Group's presentation

currency.

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the Company includes a loss of
HK$57,815,000 (2009: loss of HK$16,468,000), which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

(c)

Bina B2 ERXEE R G FE48BIER
-

= o
BABRIMAEFENENBE AR ERME
o
BRERBREREIARIBIRETERTA
BRALZRTEEREZATE -

ER R RRBRNEBOBBRRBERE
SE2FERELCMABELER -

ARAIEEREARGREBERERATHN
EH®E T 25| HE51857,815,0008 T (ZEF
JLE : [E51516,468,000/87T) °

37



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2010 Annual Report
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #ESIRERER

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE —E—FF+-A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B & THERT TET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
(Loss) Profit before taxation BrEiA (&) &7 (192,694) 133,285
Depreciation and amortisation expense TEREHS I 29,861 24,868
Finance costs RN 10,018 9,961
Net gains arising from changes in fair REMELATEZEH
value of investment properties EAE 2 WaFHE (43,681) (19,227)
Interest income from banks and other institutions #%77 & E fh ##8 2 FI| 8 WA (441) (I
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment 2 Was (1,434) @)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREYE 2 W (29,358) —
Net losses on disposal of interest in subsidiaries 1 & E A A < BB FE 47,579 26,588
Loss on deemed disposal of interest in associates ?‘ET’FHJ'EH??%*’\ AR EBE 18,971 —
Loss on deemed disposal of interest in 1R VB & KR
jointly controlled entities ERER EBE = 734
Share of results of associates FElEEt & ARl 2 %8B 84,940 484
Share of results of jointly controlled entities FEMGHRAEHIE S 2 25 — (5,662)
Recognition (Reversal) of impairment losses BR (EE) 9E - BER
on property, plant and equipment REREBR I5 1,173 (7,079)
Reversal of impairment losses RO HEMRE
on other investments HEEE (2,476) (2,600)
Net fair value losses on investments RIEEBEREZ
held for trading NHEERFE 107,899 51,563
Net fair value gains on investments designated as R B AR IEE /AR ATE
at fair value upon initial recognition SR 2B 2 A EKRFE (1,471) (89,697)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts, net RREEEERE (15,601) (54,043)
Recovery of bad debts 1 o132 B — (4,640)
Equity-settled share-based payment D/\Hﬁﬁé%;:ZHxﬁﬁ 1,514 —
Changes in working capital: LEEE
Loans receivable B E R (546,049) 161,187
Other receivables H h fE W RIE 377,297 (22,867)
Financial assets at fair value BATEARRZ
through profit or loss MBEE 32,591 (233,847)

Other payables Hfth e 1~ TR IE (4,214) (11,708)
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2010 2009
—2-%F “ETNE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt E TERT TEX

Cash used in operations REmMARE (125,576) (41,818)
Tax paid BE#MEA (333) (535)
Interest income received from BUERTT R E A

banks and other institutions W 2 RS A 44| [
Net cash used in operating activities REXBMARSFE (125,468) (42,242)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELRE (38,010) (25271)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (104,191) (31,428)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEAREENKEE — (25,020)
Purchase of other investments BEHMERE (26,639) (20,309)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, Y B KB A A

net of cash acquired EHBRMEAZEE 3 (53,500) (1,000)
Acquisition of associates, Logi3 NS

net of cash acquired ENRABAZERS — (15)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 1 &% & ¥ % 2 FT{5 58 148,800 6,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  BER

plant and equipment R TS E 3,280 63
Net cash inflow from disposal HEMBARERZ

of interest in subsidiaries ReRAFHE 32(a) 35,464 —
Net cash inflow from disposal of HERBEEER L

interest in Cordoba Group Bem A 32(b) 35,492 —
Cash received on deemed disposal BIEENEH B AR

of interest in subsidiaries BEME2RE 32(c) — 100,000
Net cash generated from investing activities REXBMERL TR 696 3,020
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2010 2009
—2-Bf —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Placement of new shares, net of expenses FLEXAR - EHIBRFAX 205,298 75,265
Issue of shares under share option scheme, RIBRREST B TR
net of expenses B kR A 22,361 —
New bank loans raised FERITER 128,049 40,000
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (99,859) (38,052)
Interest paid on bank and other borrowings XARITREMERZFE (10,018) (8,629)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEZHRERSFE 245,831 68,584
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents REeRBRSEEZEMERE 121,059 29,362
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHIZHERREZEE 196,419 167,057
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FR2BEREAEE 317,478 196,419
Analysis of the balance of cash ReRBALEELEH
and cash equivalents bl
Bank balances and cash RITEREBR S 203,413 196,419
Call deposits with maturities =18 AR E @ A
less than three months T3 114,065 —
317,478 196,419
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Willie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of this annual report. The principal activities of the

Group are described in notes 5 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, these
consolidated financial statements also include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules™).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2009 consolidated
financial statements except for the adoption of the following new / revised
HKFRSs effective from the current year that are relevant to the Group. A
summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Contd)
HKFRS 3 (Revised): Business Combinations / Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
with amendments to HKFRS 3 (Revised)

The revised standard introduces a number of major changes including the

following:

*  acquisition-related transaction costs, other than share and debt issue

costs, to be expensed as incurred;

*  existing interest in the acquiree to be remeasured at fair value, with the
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss, upon subsequent changes in

ownership interests;

*  non-controlling interests in the acquiree to be measured at either fair
value, or at its proportionate interest in the identifiable assets and

liabilities of the acquiree;

*  contingent consideration to be recognised at fair value at the acquisition

date; and

*  goodwill to be measured at the excess of the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s interest in the acquiree and
the amount of any non-controlling interests over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

assumed from the acquisition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Contd)

The Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 contains amendments to clarify the
measurement of the fair value of an intangible asset acquired in a business
combination and to permit the grouping of intangible assets as a single asset if

each asset has similar useful economic lives.

The Group amended its accounting policies in relation to business
combinations in order to bring them in line with the requirements under
HKFRS 3 (Revised). The new accounting policies are set out in the notes below.
In accordance with the relevant transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 (Revised),
the Group has applied these new policies prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after | January 2010.
These changes in accounting policies did not have material impact on the

consolidated financial statements for the year.

HKAS 27 (Revised): Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The revised standard requires accounting for changes in ownership interests in
a subsidiary, while maintaining control, to be recognised as an equity
transaction. It also requires, when the group loses control of a subsidiary, any
interest retained in the former subsidiary to be remeasured at fair value with
the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. This principle is also extended to a
disposal of an associate through the consequential amendments to HKAS 28:
Investments in Associates. The new accounting policies are set out in the notes
below. These changes in accounting policies did not have material impact on

the consolidated financial statements for the year.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Contd)

Amendments to HKAS |7: Classification of leases of land and buildings included
in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

The amendments remove the specific guidance regarding classification of leases
of land so that, following the amendments, leases of land are classified as either
“finance” or “operating” using the general principles of HKAS |7.The Group
has made a reassessment of the existing land lease arrangements and
concluded that the adoption of the amendments did not have any significant

impact on the Group.

Amendments to HK — Int 4: Leases — Determination of the Length of Lease Term
in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases

HK — Int 4 was revised as a result of the amendments to HKAS |7: Leases
which provides that entities should use judgement to decide whether the land
lease transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the land for
the purpose of classifying the lease as an operating lease or a finance lease. Its
scope is expanded to cover all land leases of property accounted for in
accordance with HKAS [6: Property, Plant and Equibment, HKAS |7: Leases and
HKAS 40: Investment Property.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Contd)

HK — Int 5: Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower

of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The interpretation concludes that, if a term loan (i.e. a loan that is repayable
on a specified date or in installments over a specified period, usually in excess
of one year) has a demand clause (i.e. a clause that gives the lender an
overriding right to demand repayment without notice or with notice period of
less than |2 months at its sole discretion) in its term, the loan shall be
classified by the borrower as a current liability in the statement of financial
position. Similarly, the amounts repayable under such a term loan shall be
classified in the earliest time bracket in the contractual maturity analysis as
required to be disclosed under HKFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The
adoption of this Interpretation has resulted in the Group reclassifying interest-
bearing borrowings amounting to HK$268,063,000 and HK$269,037,000 as at
31 December 2009 and | January 2009, respectively, from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities and making necessary changes to the relevant

disclosures accordingly.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements is historical cost, except for investment properties, financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured

at fair value as explained in the principal accounting policies.

Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—

—BEt-R=t—HLFE

TESHEEK @)

REEE ()
BR-RBESN  UBREXZE5 -

HAHEEHEXEEGFANEHEL

%(%mr*
BBB— )

EEE KZ;J:E‘H&
BRI
2 A

iy
A
i
L
Fit
fF
ﬁ‘%

R ER(EET Eﬁ
Fl - AAETEEERERM AL TR
ok B AV DA 218 B 9130 %F*A
\Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%¢%ﬁ%§ﬁﬁﬁm
BEE A& BEEEMBEREE
F1% 2MTA: REBET ﬁ@%é
AP REEHATCHEREEER
HNeBANAREETHER - KMZ
ERESAEER-_STAFT A=
T—BRZZEZANF-A—HBH5%
268,063,000/ 7T } 269,037,000/ TT #)
FERBRTEERERDEBEENHIER

nmr rNE J o

HEAE - B AR R R
Ea -
HEEE

BRERENE  BRAVEFAABDZ2HE
BERPBRBERTXAMAEIREK
Rt A FEFEN  WERAMH
RRIBELKAERE -

45



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2010 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—ZF+-_A=+-BIEE

mEMBRRMEE

Year ended 31 December 2010 B Z =

46

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and all of its subsidiaries as at 3|1 December each year. The
financial statements of its subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year

as that of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All'intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses and profits and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceased.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position, separately from equity holders of the Company.
For each business combination occurs on or after | January 2010, the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree is measured initially either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
This choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. For each business combination occurred prior to | January 2010, the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree was measured at the non-controlling

interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. From | January 2010, total comprehensive income is attributed to
the equity holders of the company and the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Prior to |
January 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess of the
non-controlling interests in the subsidiary's equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling interests
have a binding obligation and are able to make an additional investment to

cover the losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in ownership interest

From | January 2010, changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest determined
at the date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. Any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are
recognised on the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the
former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary is
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, jointly controlled entity or others

as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

Prior to | January 2010, the Group applied a policy of treating transactions
with non-controlling interest as transactions with parties external to the
Group and thus the excess amount of any consideration paid over the carrying
value of the non-controlling interest acquired was recognised as goodwill. For
decreases in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary, regardless of
whether the disposals would result in a loss of control, the difference between
the consideration received and the carrying amount of the share of net assets

disposed of was recognised in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power to govern the

financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company's statement of financial position, interest in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount on an individual basis. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

Associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which

is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

The Group's interest in associate is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes the
Group's share of the post-acquisition results of the associate for the year. The
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group's share of the
net assets of the associate and also goodwill. The Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses of the
associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the associate,
which includes any long term interests that, in substance, form part of the

Group's net investment in the associate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Associates (Contd)

From | January 2010 onwards, upon disposal of an associate that results in the
Group losing significant influence over that associate, any retained investment is
measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.The
difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate attributable
to the retained interest and its fair value is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it losses significant influence

over that associate.

Gain or loss arising from dilution of interest in associates is recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Goodwill

From | January 2010, goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
measured at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of any previously
held equity interest in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the acquired
subsidiary. Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate or a jointly
controlled entity is measured as the excess of the cost of investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of the
acquired associate or jointly controlled entity. Prior to | January 2010, goodwill
represented the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group'’s share of the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the

acquired subsidiary, associate and jointly controlled entity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Goodwill (Cont'd)

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is recognised as a separate asset.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates or jointly controlled entities is included
in interest in associates or jointly controlled entities. Goodwill is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment test and
determination of gain or loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-

generating units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

From | January 2010, in respect of a subsidiary, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the
acquired subsidiary over the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase. In respect of an
associate or a jointly controlled entity, any excess of the Group's share of its
net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of investment is
recognised immediately as income. Prior to | January 2010, any excess of the
Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary, associate and jointly controlled
entity over the related cost of acquisition, after reassessment, was recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and / or building that are held by owner or
lessee under finance lease, to earn rental income and / or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use and properties that are held under operating lease, which satisfy the

definition of investment property and are carried at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by
an independent valuer who holds a recognised professional qualification and

has recent experience in the location and category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Other investments

Other investments are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are

charged to profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment
losses of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives from
the date on which they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of lease
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Leasehold improvements 10% - 20%
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Motor vehicles 25%

Yacht 1 0%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which

the item is derecognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and on a
trade date basis. A financial asset is derecognised when the Group's contractual
rights to future cash flows from the financial asset expire or when the Group
transfers the financial asset and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. A financial liability is
derecognised only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation

specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets or financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. They
are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are (i) acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or (ii) part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives
that are not financial guarantee contracts or not designated and effective

hedging instruments.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or (ii)
they are part of a group of financial assets and / or financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded

derivatives that would need to be separately recorded.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including other receivables and loans receivable are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are not held for trading. They are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, except where receivables
are interest-free loans and without any fixed repayment term or the effect of
discounting would be insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition over the period to maturity. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
either designated at this category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in
value recognised as a separate component of equity until the assets are sold,
collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the assets are determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity is transferred to profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value

cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is
objective evidence that financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed
in subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously recognised impairment
loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value of
available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition of impairment loss is
recognised in equity. Impairment loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are
reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised in profit or loss.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include other payables and interest-bearing
borrowings. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective interest method,
unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer of the
contract to make specified payments to reimburse the holder of the contract
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract is initially recognised as deferred income within other
payables at fair value (being the transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated). Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation, and the amount
of the provision, if any, that is required to settle the commitment at the end of

the reporting period.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash equivalents
represent short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ,%"1/\571 xR

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably and on the following bases.

Net income from the sales of investments at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised on the transaction date when the relevant sale and purchase

contract is entered into.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to

the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised when the properties are

let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights to

receive payment have been established.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies translation

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in

which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are expressed in Hong Kong dollars
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity
(translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal and external
sources of information to determine whether the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment, other investments and interest in subsidiaries
and associates have suffered an impairment loss or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately, except where the relevant asset is
carried at valuation in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, except where the relevant asset is carried at valuation, in

which case the reversal of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the temporary
investment of the specific borrowings, that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense

in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating Lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are

retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.

As lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight line basis over the term of relevant lease.

As lessee
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets of the scheme are

held separately from those of the Group in an independent administered fund.

Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service payments under the
Employment Ordinance is the amounts of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method and discounted
to its present value and after deducting the fair value of any related assets,

including those retirement scheme benefit.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group's employees and a consultant receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions, whereby the employees and consultant
rendered services in exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of
such transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value of share options
granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a reserve within equity. The fair value is determined using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions of
the transactions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the

Company (“market conditions”).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payment transactions (Cont'd)

Equity-settled transactions (Cont'd)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than
employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services received,
except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the date

the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the year as
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is recovered or liability is
settled, based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Taxation (Contd)

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on interest in

subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, except where the timing

of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it

is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if

(@)

directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group; or
has an interest in the Group that gives its significant influence over the

Group; or has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in

(a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides

with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees

of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided to the Group's most senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of services, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new / revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has not early adopted. The
directors are in the process of assessing the possible impact on the future
adoption of these new / revised HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position to

reasonably estimate their impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR
20
e B ERR A
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statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKFRS | (Revised)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

HKAS 24 (Revised)

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int [4

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 9

Classification of Rights Issues '

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters 2

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments 2

Related Party Disclosures °

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

Requirement 3

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 *

Disclosures — Transfer of Financial
Assets °

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets ¢

Financial Instruments ’
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3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Contd)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | February 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 |

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2010 or | January 201 I,

as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if interest in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities have suffered any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
and follow the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the approach are stated in the
respective accounting policies. The assessment requires an estimation of future
cash flows, including expected dividends, from the assets and the selection of
appropriate discount rates. Future changes in financial performance and
position of these entities would affect the estimation of impairment loss and

cause the adjustments of their carrying amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ,%"1/\571 xR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based on
the evaluation by management of the collectability of the loans receivable. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including assessing the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each borrower. If the financial conditions of
these borrowers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability

to make payments, additional allowance will be required.

TURNOVER

Turnover recognised from the principal activities of the Group during the year
including investment holding, trading of investments, property investment and

provision of financial services are as follows:

Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—

—BEt-R=t—HLFE
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2010 2009
—g-2F  —IEhS
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Net gains from the sale of investments HERATHEFABRZ

at fair value through profit or loss* RE MG 1,529 25,894
Interest income from loans receivable W E T2 F BHA 19,676 25,561
Dividend income from listed investments EHREZBRERA 3,643 6,183
Rental income HEWA 30,850 36813
55,698 94,451

W Represents the proceeds from the sale of investments at fair value through profit * EHERATEMAER  BRERBR

or loss of HK$818,233,000 (2009: HK$1,176,886,000) less cost of sales and
carrying value of the investments sold of HK$816,704,000 (2009:
HK$1,150,992,000).

78 818,233,0008 L (Z T ZEN F -
1,176,886,000/% 7T) 3 #H & A A K E i
SR EMREES16,704,0008 L (= F
TN : 1,150,992,0008 TT)
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e MBRRMEE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HitlA
2010 2009
—%-3F  -TThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FERT
Bank interest income RITH S IA 3 I
Other interest income HAt ] B A 438 100
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREME 2 W e 29,358 —
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEREE
plant and equipment 2 Wz 1,434 7
Exchange gain B W as 252 —
Recovery of bad debts previously written-off U2 5] 3B 7 #fl $5 ) 2 BR = 4,640
Reversal of impairment losses RO HMEBEERE
on other investments B8 2,476 2,600
Reversal of impairment losses on BEMZE  BERRA
property, plant and equipment REEE = 7,079
Others Hit 5,861 4975
39,822 19,412
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The directors have been identified as the chief operating decision makers to
evaluate the performance of operating segments and to allocate resources to
those segments based on the Group's internal reporting in respect of these
segments. The directors consider trading of investments, provision of financial
services, property investment and investment holding are the Group's major
operating segments. Segment results represent the profit earned or loss
incurred by each segment. The following analysis is the measure reported to
chief operating decision makers for the purposes of resources allocation and

assessment of segment performance.
Operating segments of the Group comprise the following:

Trading of investments Purchase and sale of securities and provision
of securities services

Provision of financial Provision of loan financing services
services

Property investment Holding properties for rental and
capital appreciation

Investment holding Holding investments for dividend and

investment income and capital appreciation

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group's senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reporting segments with reference
to sales generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of

assets attributable to those segments.

Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. oBEM &)
Operating segments geaH
An analysis of the Group’s result by operating segments is set out below. TXEREEDEE H R ¥E0
o o
Year ended 31 December 2010 BZE-_Z2-ZF+-A=+t—-HLEE
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE RUSRER E34 REZR A& st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn TiEn TR TiEn
Segment revenue AHUA
Turnover L 5172 19,594 30,850 82 — 55,698
Segment results THRE (100,283) 28,070 73470 (604) (31,839) (31,186)
Net losses on disposal of interest (M E B A Az
in subsidiaries LEBRE - - - (47,579) — (47,579)
Loss on deemed disposal of BIELEREAT
interest in associates En/BR = = = (18,971) = (18,971)
Share of results of associates EiEBeRrn 8 - — - (84,940) = (84,940)
Finance costs RERK - - — — (10,018) (10018)
Loss before taxation BRAER (192,694)
Taxation e = = (2,905) - - (2,905)
Loss for the year ENER (195,599)
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Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. oBEM &)
Operating segments (Cont'd) cesd (&
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE_ZZNFT-_A=T—-HLFE
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE RUSRRE ESE REZK ADE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR TR T T
Segment revenue 2HUA
Turnover X% 32077 255! 36813 - — 94451
Segment results PHRE 72,080 83582 45993 (8934) (26331) 166,390

Net losses on disposal of interest [ E B A Al s

in subsidiaries LERRE = = = (26,588) — (26588)
Loss on deemed disposal of interest {Z{E(E kR H K

in jointly controlled entities Bn/BR = = = (734) = (734)
Share of results of jointly EiEAREHER

controlled entites b < — — - 5,662 - 5662
Share of results of associates EiEBERAR 55 — = = (1,484) = (1484)
Finance costs BENA — — — — (9961) (9.961)
Profit before taxation BRH RN 133,285
Taxation #E — — (3940) — — (3940)

Profit for the year EREN 129,345
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Operating segments (Contd)

An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating segments is set

out below.

At 31 December 2010

e MBRRMEE

7. SHER &)

g (&)

AEEREEDBE D CEERAED
FrE s o

R-ZE-ZHE+-HA=+-—H

Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Total
BERE RUSHRY MERE REER st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TER FET TER TER
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 815,236 217,663 — 350,939 1,383,838
Interest in associates  Hf & A Al — — — 583,281 583,281
Unallocated assets KOBEE — — — — 25,012
Total assets BEE 1,992,131
Liabilities 8
Segment liabilities DEEE (168) (1,396) — (1,210) (2,774)
Unallocated liabilities Ao EE = — — — (721)
Total liabilities FEN=E (3,495)
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Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. oBEM &)
Operating segments (Cont'd) RESH (B)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZAF+-_A=1—H
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Total
BEERE RESBRS MERE REEK et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET TET

Assets EE

Segment assets DEEE 932,296 529,825 773,793 316,047 2,551,961

Interest in associates BN FlAEDS — — — 183,459 183,459

Unallocated assets KOWEE — — — = 131,551

Total assets BEE 2,866,971

Liabilities afE

Segment liabilities DEEE (3,888) (545) (255,337) (30,742) (290,512)
Unallocated liabilities A DAL E & — — — — (46,439)

=N
SR
§

).
-
§
pilcs

Total liabilities (336,951)
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e MBRRMEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. oBEM &)
Operating segments (Contd) RESH (B)
An analysis of the Group's other segment information by operating segments is AEEREENBE N 2 E D EER
set out below. FImTE o
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE-_Z2-ZF+-A=+t—-HLEE
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE RUSRER E34 REZR AR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn TiEn TR TiEn
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE = = 177,218 26,667 17319 221,204
Depreciation expense mELH = — 16,118 — 13,743 29,861
Net gains arising from changes RENFATES
in fair value of investment Erz W
properties ik - - (43,681) = = (43,681)
Reversal of allowance for AERERD
doubtful debts, net A - (15,601) - - — (15,601)
Impairment losses on property, 0% BERRE
plant and equipment REER = = 1,173 = — [,173
Reversal of impairment losses BRI R E
on other investments HEBR - - — (2476) — (2476)

74



201044 RAEBRERERLT
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& B &3k R

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. oBEM &)
Operating segments (Cont'd) cesd (&
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE_ZZNFT-_A=T—-HLFE
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE RESERH VESE] AR ADE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEm TR T TiET T

Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE = = 55,387 20320 6,836 82543
Amortisation expense gy — = = = 1,418 1418
Depreciation expense mEX = = 12,740 = 10710 23450
Net gains arising from changes RENFATEED

in fair value of 2 e

investment properties #E - — (1927) - — (1927)
Reversal of allowance RERERD

for doubtful debts, net #8 = (54,043) = = = (54,043)
Recovery of bad debts {EE = (4640) = = = (4.640)
Reversal of impairment losses on B E¥% » BIE R

property, plant and equipment REREER = = (7079) = = (7079)
Reversal of impairment losses BOEMRE

on other investments RESR — = = (2,600) — (2600)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources

between segments:

*  Segment assets include all tangible assets, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and other receivables. All assets are allocated
to reportable segments other than interest in associates and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed

on a group basis.

*  Segment liabilities include financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, other payables, interest-bearing borrowings and tax payable. All
liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a

group basis.

Geographical segments

The Group's investment properties are principally located in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Trading of investments, investment

holding and provision of financial services are carried out in Hong Kong.

The following table sets out information about the geographical location of (i)
the Group’s turnover from external customers and (i) the Group's investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, other investments and interest in
associates (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the services were provided. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based on the

physical location of the assets.
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Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

An analysis of the Group'’s turnover from external customers by geographical

locations is set out below:

2010 5§ )EZ%UIB%‘?HEEFE'RT

7J TRk et

—BEt-R=t—HLFE

DEHER (&)

AEERBIIBELHEEERMIEN
EDMEINMT

2010 2009
—F-%F —ERNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Hong Kong G 54,366 89,834
PRC e 1,332 4617
55,698 94,451
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of specific non-current TRAERBEMEMREHMNEEFER
assets, additions to property, plant and equipment and investment properties, BEE TEVE BERRBEUARER
analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located: BYEZREEAN
Specified Additions to property, Additions to
non-current assets plant and equipment investment properties
EEFRDEE RENE  BERRE REREME
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Z®-%F -IENF  Z%-%F _TENF  CZE-¥F C“EEARF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TAL FTER TAL FTER TAL
Hong Kong &b 588,624 1,076,255 39373 25492 155,191 36,732
PRC G — 117212 - 10 - —
588,624 1,193,467 39,373 25502 155,191 36,732
Information on property investment segment BRYEXREDBZER

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any assets and
liabilities in the property investment segment. In recent years, the Group has
been earning rental income from letting of properties and conducting property
acquisitions and disposal transactions and expects these activities to be
continued. In the opinion of the directors, the dilution of the Group's interest
in Cordoba Group leading to the derecognition of its assets and liabilities
should not result in the Group's property investment business being regarded
as a discontinued operation under HKFRS 5: “Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations” as such business is considered to be ongoing.

REFPEER  ARERDERED
BYEEMEERERE - LFX - A%
BRLEMERRES RALETYE

BEERG BRHGUBBETAZSE
7?“ CEBEZRR ARDERBEEHRY
SHERE HRLAEEMFTREE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

During the year, the revenue and expenses attributable to the property
investment segment amounted to HK$30,850,000 (2009: HK$36,813,000) and
HK$30,717,000 (2009: HK$21,496,000) respectively, resulting in pre-tax profit
of HK$73,470,000 (2009: HK$45,993,000), the related tax expenses of HK$
2,905,000 (2009:HK$3,940,000) and post-tax profit of HK$70,565,000
(2009:HK$42,053,000) being recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year. For the year 2010, the Group also
reported a gain on disposal of interest in Cordoba Group amounted to
HK$ 11,783,000, of which HK$4,080,000 was attributable to the property

investment segment.

In terms of cash flows of the property investment segment during the year, the
net cash inflows attributable to its operating activities and investing activities
amounted to HK$8,426,000 (2009: HK$29,270,000) and HK$80,714,000
(2009: net cash outflow of HK$70,867,000) respectively, and the net cash
outflow attributable to its financing activities amounted to HK$88,895,000
(2009: net cash inflow of HK$44,660,000).

Information about major customers

Included in the turnover arising from provision of financial services and
property investment segments of HK$50,526,000 (2009: HK$62,374,000) are
turnover of approximately HK$ 19,048,000 (2009: HK$25,399,000) which arose
from interest and rental income from one (2009: two) of the Group's largest

customers which contributed more than 10% of the Group's turnover.

PREN @)
R BWENESBOBRARS 25
% 30,850,000 T (= FEAF :

36,813,000/ ;r) % 30,717,000 T (=
TENEF 1 21,496,00087T) #BREE
GETERFZRERH A &GN
734700008 T (Z EFE N F
45,993,000 t) - HA W B H X
2,905,000 7T (ZZEZAEF © 3,940,000
BT) kB 144 70,565,000 T (= &
TNEF : 420530008 T) - —E—F
F ASENRGHERBEREREM
5 #511,783,0008 T  HPRENME
2 &P FE 154,080,000 7T °

MEREDPTRNFERNNESRIE  #Z
ﬁ-&m%«%ﬁb&&éﬁbﬁfﬁ%iﬁé
MAFED B 58,426,0008 L (ZFF
JUE : 29,270,000/ 7T) }.80,714,0007%
T(ZZEZENFE - BHa gt #HE
70,867,00087T) - MH R EE B E(G K
B F4E 588,895,0008 T (ZFF
NE : B2 F 544,660,000 T) °
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FINANCE COSTS BE KA
2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Interests on: ME
Bank and other borrowings wholly ARTFEANEHEEREZ
repayable within five years RIT R E A0S 2,694 969
Bank and other borrowings wholly ARTFREHERL
repayable over five years RITREAME K 7,324 7,246
Convertible note ARRER — 1,746
10,018 9,961

For the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the interest on bank and
other borrowings which contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to
HK$10,018,000 and HK$8,215,000 respectively.

BE_Z—ZER-_ZTTNF+-R=
T—BLEFE  BEREREBERERN
17 R E A8 A 24 711 510,018,000
T 58,215,000/ T °

UJ
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(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

9. BRBLAT (BH) &EAN

2010 2009
—2-%F —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
This is stated after charging (crediting): emir (5tA) T3IEA :
Auditor’s remuneration ZER I 2 1,670 1,624
Contributions to MPF Scheme I8 & 5t IR 315 319
Depreciation of property, plant and SPATE R
equipment included in depreciation XHHYE - BE
and amortisation expense RipiTE 29,861 23,450
Amortisation of intangible assets included in SEASTE R E X
depreciation and amortisation expense BB & EE = 1,418
Operating lease charges on equipment R REHRNER 79 72
Impairment losses on property, plant and FFAHMEE T
equipment included in other YR - BB R&iE
operating expenses ZREER 1,173 =
Direct operating expenses relating to EHELAHESRAZ
investment properties that REMENEE
generated rental income RERX 7,024 4,875
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEREEMS
Directors’ emoluments ExMe
The aggregate amount of emoluments received or receivable by the ARRESEHIER M e BEN
Company's directors are as follows: ik
2010 -3
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors’ in kind  contributions
fees  HF& R RK Total
EZHE NEORS T &Rk At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT TER TERT TER
Executive directors HITES
Chuang Yueheng, Henry HRE = 120 | 121
King Phillip ERR — 420 12 432
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong R IbEs = 900 12 912
Wang Lin )\ — 240 12 252
Independent non- BYEHTES
executive directors
Liu Jian 2% 120 — — 120
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond B 2 88 120 — — 120
Cheung Wing Ping KR 120 — — 120
Wen Louis e 120 — — 120

480 1,680 37 2,197
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 10. EEREEMS @)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) EEMe (&)
2009 —EThE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement

and benefits scheme

Directors' in kind  contributions
fees e 2R HEQ/N Total
EXe  REDNE At 8B a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Executive directors HITES
Chuang Yueheng, Henry HRE — 1,800 9 1,809
King Phillip TRIE — 420 12 432
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong T — 900 12 912
Wang Lin )\ — 240 12 252
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Liu Jian el 120 — — 120
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond £ B BA 120 — — 120
Cheung Wing Ping (appointed KETF (RZZENEF
on 2 October 2009) TAZHEZFE) 30 — — 30
Wen Louis (appointed BE (RZZETNF
on 22 April 2009) MAZ+=HEZE) 80 — — 80
Lin Wai Yi (resigned on 2 E2E (RZTTNF
October 2009) +A-HEM) 90 _ _ 90
Shum Ming Choy (resigned 2B (RZTENEF
on 22 April 2009) MAZ+—HEE) 40 — — 40
480 3,360 45 3,885
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 10. EEREEME &)
Highest paid employees’ emoluments BEHEEME
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included two AEEFNLERSHEEREME (Z
(2009: three) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The TENF ZF)EF BEZMEFRE
emoluments of the remaining three (2009: two) highest paid employee is as ERNEX -BT=%(ZFENF @
follows: H)RRHFEEZHMENT
2010 2009
—2-%F “ETNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe o RBREMNG 1,392 720
Retirement scheme contributions RINGT IR 36 24
1,428 744
2010 2009
—2-%F —EThF

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 % T 3 2
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. TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009:16.5%)
on the Group's estimated assessable profits arising from Hong Kong during the

year.

The income tax provision in respect of operations in the PRC is calculated at
the applicable tax rates on the estimated assessable profits for both years

based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

e MBRRMEE

1. BB

FR - AEBREBMGATERN &
MNBRMHEE165%(ZEZENF .
16.5% )T IR BB FFH

BRTEEGNASHEERFANL
fhEtERBTEMOERREREEBR L
RITED - 2B REEE -

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZEThE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TERT
Current tax BIERT TR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH
Current year REE 176 106
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE = 619)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETE = 35
Enterprise Income Tax of the PRC BB 1 TS 135 463
311 (15)
Deferred taxation BRI
Origination of temporary differences g Z R 319 5831
Benefit of tax losses reversed (recognised) BE (BEH%R) BEBREflm 2,275 (1,876)
2,594 3,955
Total tax charge for the year FABIBRS B 2,905 3,940
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11. HIE (&)

Deferred tax recognised in profit or loss B ABBZEENE
2010 2009
—g-85  -TIAG
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET

Types of temporary differences: ERUERER

Depreciation allowances FERHR (295) 2,080
Fair value adjustments N ERE 5,344 3,740
Tax losses HIAEE 2,275 (1,876)
Others HAth (4,730) I
2,594 3,955
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wE Rk MR

TAXATION (Cont'd) 11. BE (#)
Reconciliation of tax expense BEX HHER 2010 2009
—E-2F —EThE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHET
(Loss) Profit before taxation BREAT (EE) &F (192,694) 133,285
Income tax at applicable tax rate #165% (ZFENF :16.5%)
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) ZERB R R ZEN (31,795) 21,992
Non-deductible expenses TRIMKR X H 7,100 2,339
Unrecognised tax losses AERREEE 25,701 —
Unrecognised temporary differences AERERIEERE (4,095) (9,875)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ) E AR < TR IBEEE (63) (9,968)
Recognition of previously unrecognised BRBTARBRZ
deferred tax assets BERIBEE (43) (152)
Recognition of previously unrecognised BRBTABERLZ
deferred tax liabilities EEMIEAE (101 —
Reversal of previously recognised temporary BOBEERERLZ
differences Tt ERE 7,255 —
Effect of different tax rates of a subsidiary —EREMBREERE S 2
operating in other jurisdictions fBARIMNTRRETE (63) (962)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEERE = (584)
Effect of share of results of associates DIEBMERRER X E 14,015 245
Effect of share of results of jointly DHEREHERES
controlled entities ZRE = 220
Others HAth (496) 685
2,905 3,940
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R&

Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Of the Group’s loss for the year of HK$195,599,000 (2009: profit of
HK$129,345,000), a loss of HK$57,815,000 (2009: HK$[6,468,000) has been

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share is based on loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year of 2010 of
HK$169,285,000 (2009: profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$129,345,000) and the weighted average number of 202,643,984 ordinary
shares (2009 (restated): 92,152,751 ordinary shares) in issue during the year

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the calculation of
the basic (loss) earnings per share for the year of 2010 and 2009 has been
adjusted to reflect the impact of the capital reorganisation effected subsequent

to the end of 2010 (see note 40).

For the year ended 31 December 2010, as there was an anti-dilutive effect
after adjusting for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted loss

per share was the same as the basic loss per share.

The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year 2009.
Accordingly, the diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic earnings

per share.

12.

13.

2010 5§ )EZ%UIB%‘?HEEEE'RT

7J TRk et

—BEt-R=t—HLFE

R (ER) R

AEBEZFNEEA195599,000% 7T
(ZZFENF : 57129,345,00087T)
HA &8 A57,8150008 T (ZEF
F : 16,468,000/ ) BN AR AIBI 5
RHRE -

Bk (BR) B

BRER(BE) B DERARER R
BEAEE-ZZ—ZFEHE169,285,000%
T (ZEENE AR AR FEAEL
)5 F1/129,345,0008 7t) R FNE E1TE
BAL 2 N F 15 20202,643,9848 (= F

FNE(EF) : 92,152,751 ZER) =t
EfEAE " T-ZER-_TTHAFZ
FRER (BE) BRERM 2T BRI
BIHNY  URM - -—TFFHEEE

Mz EXRER 272 (RHIE40) °

HE_T-THF 1 EWL*BJtE
B mARBEBRMEAEEEEY
PERELREBEYE  HER %&%Eﬁ
BEgREALNERAER
ARRR_ZENFUBBEEAEY

%Z%LH At - EREFRTES
ERBNAR -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 4. REN=
2010 2009
—2-Bf —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
Fair value ATE

At beginning of year REH] 638,773 609,814
Additions NE 104,191 36,732
Additions — acquisition of subsidiaries WNE - WEHRB LT 51,000 —
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEYDE  BERRE = (21,000)
Net changes in fair value NP ELHER 43,681 19,227
Disposals HE (115,800) (6,000)
Disposal of interest in subsidiaries (note 32(a)) HEMBRREZR (K 32(a) (117,173) —

Disposal of interest in HEREEEER
Cordoba Group (note 32(b)) (Ktat 32(b) (604,672) —
At end of the reporting period REZHEERB — 638,773

The carrying value of investment properties held by the Group at the end of

BEB  ARERAIREY

the reporting period comprised: Zﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ :

2010 2009
—E-%F ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET

Land in Hong Kong: NREB LM
Long lease REAMK — 303,100
Medium-term lease AR 4 — 218,500
— 521,600

Land in the PRC: IR Bz L3
Medium-term lease R 4 — 17,173

= 638,773
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20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR
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e B ERR A

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

15. 1% - BERRE

Leasehold  Leasehold
landand  improve-  Furniture Office
buildings ments and fixtures  equipment Motor
BEL i) B BOE vehicles Yacht Total
k#gF Nx%E  R%E EY] RE it @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR FTER FTRER TR TR TR
Reconciliation of carrying REEHE-HZE
amount - year ended “ETNETCA
31 December 2009 =t—HIEFRE
At beginning of year REA) 72917 26,628 752 5760 10,135 72,000 194,961
Additions NE = [1,180 5217 3,697 5408 = 25502
Transfer from investment BRERA
properties LS 21,000 — — — — — 21,000
Disposals & — (133) (154) — — — (267)
Depreciation ik (3271) (3.777) (2,050) (2,834) (3939) (7.579) (23/450)
Reversal of impairment losses Bl EE 8 = = = = = 7079 7079
At end of the reporting period ~ RE2HHLER 90,646 33,898 10,534 6623 11,604 71500 224805
Reconciliation of carrying REEHR-8Z
amount - year ended e g
31 December 2010 Zt-RLEFE
At beginning of year REA) 90,646 33,898 10,534 6,623 11,604 71,500 224,805
Additions NE — 15,151 1,734 6,836 5,652 — 39,373
Disposals e — (1,010) (344) (1or) (1,846) — (3,301)
Depreciation ik (3,500) (4,969) (1,930) (4,233) (6,817) (8412) (29,861)
Impairment losses REER — — — — — (1,173) (1,173)
Disposal of interest in HENBARER
subsidiaries (note 32(a)) (K&t 32(a) (18,086) (2,700) (368) (41) — — (21,195)
Disposal of interest in hERESBER
Cordoba Group (note 32(b)) (Kiit 32(b) (69,060) (37,881) (9,060) (6,796) (18,593) (61,915)  (203,305)
At end of the reporting period REHZHLEEH — 2,489 566 2,288 - - 5,343
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I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

e MBRRMEE

15. W% - BER®KE (@)

Leasehold  Leasehold
landand  improve-  Furniture Office
buildings ments and fixtures  equipment Motor
HELH i) -1 B BAE vehicles Yacht Total
kgF Nx%EL  RKE R RE id @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
FTER TiEn TiEn TiEn FTER FTER FTER
At | January 2009 RZZZN5-A-H
Cost AR 80558 28661 10,338 8,400 14,588 91207 233752
Accumulated depreciation ZHIER
and impairment losses REBE (7,641) (2,033) (2817) (2,640) (4453) (19,207) (38791)
72917 26,628 752 5760 10,135 72,000 194961
At | January 2010 RZZ-TF-A—H
Cost KR 101,559 39,566 15,381 12,09 19,996 91,207 279,805
Accumulated depreciation ZHIER
and impairment losses REBE (10913) (5,668) (4,847) (5473) (8392) (19,707) (55,000)
90,646 33,898 10,534 6,623 1,604 71,500 224,805
At 31 December 2010 R-2-%%
+ZA=+-H
Cost KA — 4338 1,548 6,472 — — 12,358
Accumulated depreciation ZER
and impairment losses REER - (1,849) (982) (4,184) - — (7,015)
— 2,489 566 2,288 — — 5343

The leasehold land and buildings with a net book value of HK$42,054,000 and
HK$48,592,000 at 31 December 2009 were held by the Group under

medium-term and long-term lease respectively in Hong Kong. These leasehold

land and buildings were held by the Cordoba Group which ceased to be

subsidiaries of the Group following the disposal as detailed in note 32(b).

RZZTNF+=-_A=1+—0 £58E
BRRHAORRBAOREEREG2H
ETHMERBFIERAFENNA
42,054,000/ 7T & 48,592,000/ T ° #%
EHETHRETHRESERE M
HEEERLERTERAEENEL
7] FEERHE32() °
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—BEt-R=t—HLFE

16. Bl ARRRE

The Company AAT
2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Unlisted convertible note: FEMARKRER
Loan component BN — 103,827
Option derivatives, at fair value* HIEITHET A - UATEER* = 65,898
— 169,725
s As at 3| December 2009, the option derivatives represent the fair value of a * ZEENFTZR=1—H - Bl

conversion option derivative of HK$67,925,000 and a redemption option
derivative of HK$2,027,000.

2009

In October 2009, the Company entered into a conditional subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with Cordoba Homes Limited
("Cordoba"), a then wholly-owned subsidiary, for the subscription of a non-
interest bearing convertible redeemable note due 2011 with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 issued by Cordoba (the “Cordoba
Convertible Note™), which would entitle the Company to convert the principal
amount outstanding into new fully paid ordinary shares of Cordoba (the
“Cordoba Shares”) at an initial conversion price of HK$0.60 per Cordoba
Share, subject to adjustment. The Cordoba Convertible Note was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and would be repaid on the second anniversary following
the date of issue of the Cordoba Convertible Note (the “Cordoba Maturity
Date").

EIE%EEJ#;HX,BWEOTEIEZQﬁﬁ
67,925,0008 7 * RERHETETA
2,027,000 7T °

—2ENF

RZZTNFTA AREHEERKNZ
BNBARRBREERAA ([HKE])
AuEGHRBRE ([REHZA] R
BREBIT 2 ANE 8% 5120,000,0007%
TRZE——FIHANESTEER
REE ((HETRRER]) - ARFT
REBRRERH0.60ETHNSERRE
(RERB)BREBNEILBEER AR
EARHTLAR((HERRD]) - KE
ARREBEARER  REREREN
TEurREEE ARTE-BF ([K
EHHA]) EE -
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6. CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLE (Cont'd) 16. B ATBRBRRE (&)

92

2009 (Cont'd)

The Cordoba Convertible Note contained loan component and option
derivatives component. As at 3| December 2009, none of the principal
amount of the Cordoba Convertible Note was converted or redeemed and
the aggregate principal amount of the Cordoba Convertible Note outstanding
as at 31 December 2009 amounted to HK$120,000,000.

The fair value of the option derivatives of Cordoba Convertible Note has
been determined by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified

professional valuer, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The effective interest rate of the loan component of the Cordoba Convertible

Note at initial recognition was about 8%.

2010

In November 2010, the Company and Supreme Castle Investments Limited
("Supreme Castle”), a third party, entered into a provisional sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to dispose of the Cordoba
Convertible Note, with an aggregate outstanding principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 at a cash consideration of HK$120,000,000. The disposal was
completed in December 2010 and accordingly, a loss of HK$58,389,000 on
disposal of convertible note receivable was recognised in profit or loss of the

Company.

“EBRNE (B)

RETRREEOEERD S K BEN
ATARD RZTEZAF+ZA=T
—B - TEREITRAREECASED
RWEBHER  RETRREENZA
A& % 5120,000,0008 7T ©

TEntkEERgETETIAZ Y E
HBYARBERBXRMEMES RIS
ERRARABANAR - FRNREEE
BABE -

%T%hmﬁﬁ K B 0 B0 410K HE R By

—E-EF
—ZF+—-fA ARRHFE=FH

Supreme Castle Investments Limited
([Supreme Castle)) 7]\ R b5 B & 1
& ARAERE AR 2R E120,000,000
BTHEREIRREEAEER AL
#8120,000,000& 7T - HER-F—ZF
TZARK - Eit - HERRABREER
1% E51858,389,000%8 L E st AR A AR

S o

Bk
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. KB R RS
The Company
KATF

2010 2009

—g-%F  -IINE

HK$000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Unlisted shares, at cost IE ET, - LARARE 676,612 |,548,481
Due from subsidiaries e NGIE S 959,122 911,068
1,635,734 2,459,549
Impairment losses* HERE * (602,341) (891,100)
1,033,393 | 568,449

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed
repayment term. At the end of the reporting period, HK$ 140,642,000 (2009:
HK$833,000) of the balance due bears interest at effective interest rate of 5%
per annum (2009: 5% per annum) and the remaining balance is interest-free.

The carrying amount of the amounts due approximates their fair value.

& The impairment losses were recognised for interest in certain subsidiaries with an
aggregate carrying amount (before deducting the impairment losses) of
HK$676,549,000 (2009: HK$2,121,034,000) because these subsidiaries have
deficiency in assets and, accordingly, a portion of the interests is impaired. Due to
the improved performance of certain subsidiaries and the reversal of impairment
of a former subsidiary, the impairment losses carried forward for the year were
reduced by HK$288,759,000 (2009: HK$226,671,000).

In the opinion of the directors, a complete list of the particulars of all
subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the table below lists the
principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period which materially affect

the result or assets of the Group.

BUEMBARIREARERREETER
HE o MERBLEH - 140,642,000%
T (ZEZENLF : 833,000 L) 2 1%
ERFHNERR (ZTENF  FHXE
5%)it 8 BRTHRBRDER - RRZE
HEEQTERS

°

* HRETHEAREETE  PHEz
BRE BHZEHBAR IRRE
[E518 A1) BR T 42{8.676,549,0007%8 7T (=
TENEF ©2,121,034,000 70) gz
ERRMEERE - ARNETHBRRIEE
BRSER—ERINE A RRERE
FRAEEHNREBEBE R D
288,759,000 Tt (= £ FT /1 F .
226,671,000/ 7T) °

EZRR ARNZEZIMEMELR
ZHBREBNILE - IﬁtT%EzﬁlJ
%Di&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi’lNi@%Z XEER
BEAREZIEMER
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I7. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

e MBRRMEE

17. WBARER (£)

Percentage of

Particulars of

nominal value of

Place of issued and paid up issued share capital
incorporation ordinary share capital held by the Company  Principal
Name of subsidiaries and operations BRIRSAR ARRBHHC BT activities
WELARER AR, SEBE BBERAZHE REAEEZAEILE  TEXH
(Note) Directly  Indirectly
(P =E) B EIF:3
% %

China United International Hong Kong 53,000 shares of 100 —  Provision of
Administrative Services B HK$100 each administrative
Limited 53,000 fi% & i services

BB RB AR A A EfE 100 T2 & fn RETHRS

Headman Investments Hong Kong | share of HK$ | each — 100 Investment holding
Limited BE | R E R EE BEER

BEREFRAA | BT Bt

Pearl Decade Limited British Virgin Islands 9,615,386 shares — 00  Trading of investments

RBRZES of US$! each BEERA
9,615,386 [ &k
H{E | T2 Biin

Sun Willie Financing Limited ~ Hong Kong | share of HK$ | each — |00 Money lending

BN EERAA] BB | REMREE | BTz R mE

Willie Resources Cayman Islands 4,951,408,325 shares 100 —  Investment holding
Incorporated HEHS of HK$0.10 each BERR

BAERERAF 4,951,408325 R B AR

E1E 0.10 & T2 &5

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in Hong Kong.

Note:

94

No loan capital has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.

FFEMBLARN T EEETRLE -

et BIBEMMBRARETEEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R&

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—

18. EFEE

7J TRk et

—BEt-R=t—HLFE

Total
st
HK$'000
TET
Reconciliation of carrying amount Eﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
— year ended 3| December 2009 —HE_ZTNFT_A=t—RHLEE
At beginning of year N ) 131,879
Amortisation (1,418)
Disposal of interest in a subsidiary HE—RNBA R ERE (130,461)
At end of the reporting period Ea |
At | January 2009 —_ZTNFE—-H—H
Cost 136,000
Accumulated amortisation BETE (4,121)
131,879

The intangible assets represented the rights to (i) obtain the 50% of forestry
land use rights and forestry trees entitlement of three forestry sites in Simao
District, Puer City, Yunnan Province, the PRC and (i) share 50% of distributable
profits of these forests, which were disposed during 2009.

a_|, nu»

BREAERARIDETEERE Y
% %wmzw%MMﬁ%%&

MARMERE : Bi)ZBZEMNE250%

o] 2 BOR A -
NEFEHE -

DEEWEEN_ZTZT
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Year ended 31 December 2010 B Z =

19. OTHER INVESTMENTS Hit &
2010 2009
—2-Bf —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
At cost PARC AR 5t

At beginning of year NG 146,430 123,521
Additions NE 26,639 20,309
Reversal of impairment losses t2ENCRETSEE 2,476 2,600

Disposal of interest in Cordoba HENREEEER
Group (note 32(b)) (B3 32(b)) (175,545) —
At end of the reporting period RERBEHEAR — 146,430

Other investments represent rare precious stone and artwork.

Hit B ERAEORENS

BROREBRIERENm 2 REAER
JYEEB REEFE - JREEH
N2EBUEEGEMMATENRRNE
RPEEAZ R TEMERE °

The reversal of impairment losses was based on the lower of carrying amount
and recoverable amount of artwork. The recoverable amount was determined
with reference to respective fair values of artwork estimated by an

independent professional valuer at the end of the reporting period.
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR

e MBRKRME

20. BELTESR

The Group The Company
ZN L ZANN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-25 —TTHNF ZB-BF —ITTILF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET
Unlisted share, at cost FLEMERE - ARG — — 690,314 —
Share of net assets EIEBEFE 583,281 183,459 — —
Impairment losses HEEE = — (107,033) —
583,281 183,459 583,281 —
Details of the principal associates at the end of the reporting period are as REGBAEEANTIERELAFEN
follows: T
Percentage
of nominal value

of issued share

capital held by

the Group
Place of Class of AEBE
Name of associates incorporation shares held ERITRAE Principal activities
BENTEH oL A 3L it B s AR % R HEZBDHL TEXK
%
Apex Novel Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
RERLEE gl MERE
Bestford Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
Bk gL MERE
Bright Majestic Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
RERAHES E B NERE
Cordoba Homes Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Investment holding
HEFREERAF RERLEE gl RERR
Cordoba Homes Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Shares 40.71 Money lending
Bk gL &

o
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20. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Contd)

e MBRRMEE

20. BEDRAER (&)

Percentage
of nominal value
of issued share

capital held by

the Group
Place of Class of rEBERE
Name of associates incorporation shares held BRITRAE Principal activities
BENTEH E IR AR 2 3t Fris R &R HEZBDL FEEK
%
CW Financing Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Shares 40.71 Money lending
B gl MiE
Earn Best Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
RERELES gl MERE
Grace Shine Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
ERRBARAT RERLES LRk NERE
Hostbest Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
RERLES gl MERE
International Stamps & Coins Hong Kong Ordinary Shares 40.71 Motor vehicles
Auction Limited BB gL owning
PREBEREREARAA BENE
Longtop Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
EREXERAF B gl MERE
Poly Logic Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
RERELES gl MERE
Perfectday Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
RERLES LRk NERE
Startech Business Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
RERLES gl MERE
Silver Target Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment

RERELES

gL

MERE
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20. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Contd) 20. BREARIREE (8)

Percentage
of nominal value
of issued share

capital held by

the Group
Place of Class of AEBERE
Name of associates incorporation shares held BRITRAE Principal activities
BeEQRER A P A 2 3t R Fris R38R HEZBDEL FTEEK
%
Trade Well Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
FEREEARAT RERLEE gl MERE
United Goal Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Investment Holding
BeREBRRF RERZES gl REEK
Uprite Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Yacht owning
RERZEE il BRI
Wealth Champion Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
RERLEE gl MERE
Wealth Elegant Investments British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
Limited RERAES gl NERE
HHERRAA
Wellhand Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Shares 40.71 Motor vehicles
BE gl owning

BEAE
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20. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Contd)

e MBRRMEE

20. BEDRAER (&)

Percentage
of nominal value
of issued share

capital held by

the Group
Place of Class of rEBERE
Name of associates incorporation shares held BRITRAE Principal activities
BENTEH oE Al A 37 4t B Fris R &R HEZBDL FEEK
%
Willie Carpark (North Point) Hong Kong Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
Limited BB EF il MERBA
BMES (1A) ARAR
Winsy Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
AEREBR LA RERUES LRk MERE
Wise Sky Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
RERLES gl MERE
Wiseteam Assets Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 40.71 Property investment
ABRAES gl MERE

All of the above associates operate principally in Hong Kong except Perfectday

Investments Limited which operates principally in Australia.

B Perfectday Investments Limited® Z
ERMEEIN - LB E AR E
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20. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Contd)

20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR
20
e B ERR A

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

20. BEDRESR (&)

2010 2009
—E-2F “TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Share of associates' assets and liabilities it e e EENEE
Non-current assets ERBEE 535,840 6,894
Current assets mBEE 258,996 248,269
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (11,113)
Current liabilities mEEE (200,442) (71,704)
583,281 183,459
Share of associates' turnover and results [EIEEt 2 NE s RN EE
Turnover ] 5,062 783
Loss for the year FAEE (84,940) (1,484)

The accounting policies adopted by the associates are consistent with the

accounting policies adopted by the Group.

The Group's share of associates’ loss for the year amounted to HK$84,940,000
(2009: HK$1,484,000) attributable to Cordoba Group's loss on disposal of

investments and share of losses of its associates (see note 32(b)).

B R RRA 2 B3 BE A R B

R eSS

FRNAEEEEHELCABER
84,940,000%8 7T (ZFF A4 . 1,484,000
B)  TERRERERERE ERK
FEIR BB R R B R E (R HTE32(0)
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21.

e MBRRMEE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21, HHENKEE
The Group The Company
AEE KD F]
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNF CZEBE-ZTF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET TERT FAET
Unlisted investment, at cost EEMRE ARG 22,000 22,000 — —
Club membership debentures, eMEsEs
at cost VAR ANt 4,020 5,061 3,020 3,020
26,020 27,061 3,020 3,020

The directors are of the opinion that as the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates for the unlisted investment and club
membership debentures are significant and probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in

estimating fair value, these investments are stated at cost less impairment loss.

The unlisted investment as at 3|1 December 2010 represents interests in 21%
of the nominal value of the issued non-voting, redeemable participating share
capital (“Participating Share™) of an equity investee (the “Equity Investee”). The
Equity Investee is not treated as an associate because the Group did not have

the right to exercise significant influence over the Equity Investee.

Particulars of the Equity Investee are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

EXRRENFLTRERENERE
S ABEAFERERBEAN - B
ZEBEA SBEMERNEEELRETE
MEZANFERFE  REAFREN
AR EBRIER -

R-B-BET=A=t-B2kLD
RARNERAAR ((RRALA)E
FRREE  TEESRRA (28
i) BEA21 %k - ARAEEE
RERRADABNEALE - HH
REAATRABELR -

8>

WRERRLZFBOT

Percentage of the nominal value
of issued Participating Shares

held by the Group

operations Class of rEBEFE
Company name EmRYL, shares held ERTSERD
AEER Lewi P 45 B A2 S8 HEZBEDH
VMS Private Investment British Virgin Participating Share 21%
Partner VI Limited Islands / Hong Kong SLERH
REBRAEE /BE
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR
20
e B ERR A

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

22. RAFEABRMEEE

BRAFEFARGZHBEEZ DM

T
2010 2009
—B-FF —TThF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i E TER FET
Investments held for trading KEEERE
Equity securities R ENCE
Listed in Hong Kong REA LT 603,413 809,06
Listed overseas R ki 18,832 28,035
Bond listed overseas RN b2 5 3,920 =
(@) 626,165 837,096
Investments designated as at fair value RERAEIKEER
upon initial recognition BAFEIRZRE
Unlisted derivative financial instruments FLEMTEERIA (b)&(c) — 12,766
Unlisted convertible bonds F LA RRES (b)&(d) 51,677 36,485
51,677 49,251
677,842 886,347
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Cont'd)

Notes:

(@)  The fair values of listed equity securities and listed bond are based on quoted

market prices in active markets at the end of the reporting period.

(b)  The unlisted investments were designated as at fair value upon initial recognition

as they are managed and evaluated on fair value basis.

()  The fair value of unlisted derivative financial instruments was estimated using the

mark-to-market value at the end of the reporting period as reported by a broker.

(d)  The fair value of unlisted convertible bonds at the end of the reporting period
using valuation technique based on assumptions and estimates including average
stock price, risk free rate, volatility and dividend yield had been estimated by an

independent qualified professional valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited.

(e) At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss exceeded 0% of the Group's total assets. In addition,
the Group's shareholding in each of the investees did not exceed 20% of the

issued shares of the investees.

(f) At the end of the reporting period, the Group's financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with an aggregate amount of HK$677,842,000 (2009:
HK$886,347,000) were pledged to certain financial institutions and brokers to
secure certain margin financing facilities amounted to HK$317,240,000 (2009:
HK$446,112,000) granted to the Group which were not utilised (2009:
HK$3,804,000 utilised) at the end of reporting period.

mEMBRRMEE

22. BAVLEFABEZHBEEE B

(b)

(d)

(e)

IHBAEFR LT ESF D FELE
RERAGEE BRI R Es
g

A L R R A T EEEEB R
b R E KRR BRI ARAT

CHER

FELMITERBIAZ ATFEDER—
EFELMEBNERAEERZHE
ETEE

FETURREBENERALEERZD
FEDRABGEZL  ERNRR KM
(BREmBYERGEMESERFTG
BR AR FHARE - ERET
L ORERREE)EE

RERPEER - AEERDFEEA
BaMBRAENERBASEEEE
210% ° Whh  REEHSRRES
Y BBAZHRE N CRITRD
220% °

RERBLEER  ~EEABLEE
677,842,000 T (Z EE N F :
886,347,000 ) 6= N T EE ABa
CHBBEERTETEREERES
BRURGAEEERESEAR
317,240,0008 ¢ (= EE N F
446,112,000 ) A TRESBERE
B RERPLEER  ZEREEEM
XEA (CZEZNF : EE)FI3,804,000
BIT) o
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23. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to repayment schedules.

The balance comprises loans receivable from:

23. EWER

RYERAZERRERKEHREER -
HEHRER/RNTRIER

2010 2009
=5 =
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P EE TR TiET
Third parties F=h (a) 202,280 210,679
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE (b) — (63,225)
202,280 147,454
Less: Balances due within one year W —FREBESA

included in current assets MENVE B < it (198,280) (133,605)
Non-current portion FREF S 4,000 13,849
Short term loans, net of provision REER - MEREE 47,133 106,507
Instalment loans PHER 155,147 40,947
202,280 147,454

Notes: i

(@) At the end of the reporting period, loans receivable (1) carry effective interest
rates ranging from around 2.5% per annum to 2% per annum (2009: from around
2% per annum to 2% per annum); (2) include no past due balances (2009:
HK$33,243,000 which were past due over ten months and were fully impaired); (3)
include balances of HK$202,280,000 (2009: HK$177,436,000) which are within
the respective maturity dates and (4) are unsecured (2009: balances of
HK$57,666,000 were secured and the fair value of the pledged assets was
HK$3,502,000).

@) MERWLAER EREFNZEBRSF
FRNTL2ER12E (—EENF :
FRHEH2EZ12E) : 2)BEEDD
B8 (ZTENGE - BHEB AR
,,.uéﬁﬁ§k33,243,000;%i B2 ER
E): QEENSEREIHAANE
ﬁ%zozzsooooﬁéyz (ZEENF :
177,436,000 ) + R(4)EEH (ZF
TNEF  HEAEER57,666,00008 7T K
BHEERXFES#3,502,00087T) °
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23. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Contd)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(b) The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

mEMBRRMEE

23. BWER (&)
Wik ()
b) REBEEHNT :

2010 2009

= i —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT TET

At beginning of year REA]) 63,225 117,268
Increase in allowance s = 23,225
Reversal of allowance B olRE (15,601) (77,268)
Amount written off MiEeHE (8,517) —
Disposal of interest in Cordoba Group HERBER 2z #H (39,107) —
At end of the reporting period REBBEER — 63,225

The directors assessed the collectability of loans receivable at the end of
the reporting period individually with reference to borrowers' past
collection history and current creditworthiness. None of the loans (2009:
an amount of HK$63,225,000 in respect of four loans) were determined to
be impaired as a result of the assessment. In the directors’ opinion, there
was no indication of deterioration in the collectability of the amount of
HK$202,280,000 (2009: remaining amount of HK$147,454,000) and thus

no additional allowance was considered necessary.

ESNERBLEALLZERA
ZBEEFLEREREE - @5
TEERERZAIREEE o T
%ﬁlﬂﬁ —TENF FUE

B3 £ 84632250005 )8
ﬁﬂﬂ@ EERA ARUED
£ #R202,280,0008 T (ZFZA
F : B280147,454,000%7T) 2 AT IR
ERAERCTR  AUHBAZR
FHREEIMNEE o
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24. OTHER RECEIVABLES H ft fE We 5008
The Group
r&EH

2010 2009

—E-2F —EENF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

i = TER FET

Due from associates P& Lt Bt & 1) R R (@) 159,784 —

Deposits and prepayments BEeRERMK 19,239 40,747
Subscription monies receivable BIELE—RWMBLA

on deemed disposal of a subsidiary B FE W R BB B — 350,000

Other receivables H fth & e 308 864 25476

179,887 416,223

The Company
VAN/NE|

2010 2009

— —EENF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

oy TERT FET

Due from associates JE Wik & 1~ Rl 3R (a) 150,134 —

Deposits and prepayments B &ﬁﬁfﬂ 9,915 276

160,049 276

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired with no history of

default. In the directors’ opinion, these balances are fully recoverable.

(@)

The amount due includes a loan of HK$150,000,000 due from an
associate which is unsecured, bearing interest at prime rate and
repayable within one year. The carrying amount of the amount due

approximates its fair value.

TREETEBHMERNE BBEY
BHEX REERRH UXBUMEZE

(a)

FEW SR B R E R B ER
150,000,000 7T * #% & & \
- REEEMNEHE  LAR—
FNEE - BRRAREEERY
ERE
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25. OTHER PAYABLES 25. HAtEM A
The Group The Company
A&HE VYN
2010 2009 2010 2009
“2-2F —ITTHNF ZE-BF —TITNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
P & TERT TET TER TET
Due to subsidiaries NI PNGIE/OE (a) — — 990 7,228
Other payables H il fE T 3R (b) 3,467 11,496 l,155 1,041
3,467 ['1,496 2,145 8,269
Notes: Pt 5t -
(a)  The amount due is unsecured, interest free and have no fixed payment term. The (a) ZFBAEER 28 HEETERD
carrying amount of the amount due approximates its fair value. R HREEEQFEES -
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any balance (2009: b) MERMEER  AEEWEEM ;Efi/\\
HK$3,804,000) payable to securities brokers of which the settlement term is two RHBEMBABENEMNZEFLR
days after trade date. HiEH (ZZFEZTNF | 38040008
) e
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 26. FEER

At 31 At 31 At |
December 2010  December 2009 January 2009
R-E-2f RZEENF R-ZETNF
+=A=+-B t-A=t—H —H—R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET
(restated) (restated)
(EZ51) (EZ51)
Secured bank loans AHEMRITER — 295,369 293,421
Current portion mEB D
As previously reported BZEIF2W = 27,306 24,384
Reclassification from HRRREERE—
non-current portion as 2 5 5%
a result of the effect of ERB D B
adoption of HK-Int5 Pk} = 268,063 269,037
As restated g57 — 295,369 293421
Non-current portion FEmE D
As previously reported BT 2 = 268,063 269,037
Reclassification to current BN RN EBRE—
portion as a result of the £ 55m
effect of adoption by Ked
of HK-Int5 mENE D — (268,063) (269,037)
As restated &5 — -
— 295,369 293421
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26.

wE Rk MR

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Contd) 26. sHEER &)
Maturity of the above borrowings in accordance with the terms in the loan METREEREENGRZEED
facilities is as follows: ZZHT :
At 31 At 31 At |
December 2010  December 2009 January 2009
R-Z-%F —EERNF R-ZBNF
+=ZA=t-B +ZA=t-H —H—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET
(restated) (restated)
(E51) (E31)
Within one year —F R — 27,306 24,384
In the second year E_F — 27,762 24776
In the third year E=F — 25,726 25,180
In the forth year FME — 23,716 23,097
In the fifth year FRF — 24215 21,026
Over five years REFEMNE — 166,644 174,958
— 268,063 269,037
— 295,369 293421

Bank loans are variable rate borrowings which carry interest rates ranging
from prime lending rate® minus 3.15% to prime lending rate* and from Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.5% to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
plus 2.85% for the year of 2009.

& Represents the Hong Kong dollar prime lending rate as quoted by (i) Chong Hing

Bank Limited; (ii) Wing Hang Bank, Limited (iii) the Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited and (iv) The Bank of East Asia, Limited.

BROEFRERER  R-ZTAFR
NFREBENE*F3 15 EEREFN X
RERRITAZFEIMEERER
TRFFSM2.85E5 8 -

4\

* O RBOAERTERAR  (IKFRITE
RA (|||E/%J:/5)E§fiﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ
Al R(vRERITAERA B ARAE T
REBME -
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. EERERE
The movement for the year in the Group's net deferred tax liabilities is as FNAEEEEHBERRFEZY N
follows: T
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TiET
At beginning of year REA) 29,398 25,439
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE b B 2 | 900 —
Charge to profit or loss R 18 & MR 2,594 3,959
Disposal of interest in HERBA R ER
subsidiaries (Note 32 (a)) (F3E 32(a)) (6,926) —
Disposal of interest in HERBEE R
Cordoba Group (Note 32(b)) (BI5E 32(0)) (25,966) —
At end of the reporting period REZHMEHERB — 29,398
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting RERPEEARRANECHEEER
period represent the following: BEMT:
Assets Liabilities
BE 8
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-%F -TIAE -T-BF -ITAL
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET TER TET
Depreciation allowances FERTE — 312 (102) (13,562)
Fair value adjustments RNTEAE = 64 — (8,121)
Business combinations £BE6 — — — (22,560)
Tax losses HIAEE 102 14,648 — —
Others HAh — — — (179)
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) BEREEE (BE) 102 15,024 (102) (44,422)
Offsetting B (102) (15,024) 102 15,024

Net deferred tax liabilities ELERBEEEHE = — — (29,398)
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Contd)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

e MBRRMEE

27. BEREEE &)
AERNELCHREERS

2010 2009
ZE-ZF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Deductible temporary differences AHREREERE — 75,611
Tax losses TiIaE R 898,153 981,454
At the end of the reporting period REEHMEERB 898,153 1,057,065
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BA&
Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
EEREA H{E
HK$°000
TERT
Authorised ordinary shares at BREE0.10E T
HK$0.10 each: ZHEEEBR
At | January 2009 RZZEZNF—HA—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Increase during the year FAREM 9,000,000,000 900,000
At 31 December 2009 and R-EBETNET_A=+—HEK
at 3| December 2010 —E-ZF+-A=1+-H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd) 28. R (&)
Number of
ordinary
shares
in issue Issued Share
BT capital premium Total
EEBRHE CBOTRE ROEE Azt
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
P E TERT TER TERT
Issued and fully paid ordinary S RMEE0.10 BT Z
shares of HK$0.10 each: =% 5)
RBREBR
At | January 2009 RZZEZNF
—H—H 389,960,981 38,996 2,749,254 2,788,250
Placement of new shares, RLERMMR
net of expenses BEHBRFEX 77,990,000 7,799 67,466 75,265
Issue of shares upon RERATARER
conversion of convertible &7
notes, net of expenses BEHBRFEX 129,496,402 12,950 170,243 183,193
At 31 December 2009 and R-ZZTNF
at | January 2010 +=—A=+—8
E_Z—FF
—H—H 597,447,383 59,745 2,986,963 3,046,708
Placement of new shares, o & 3TA% - (@),(b),
net of expenses Bk A< (c) & (d) 823,162,447 82,316 122,982 205,298
Issue of shares under share WRIR BT 2l
option scheme, EITRAD
net of expenses =GR 30 59,740,000 5,974 17,901 23,875
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-2%
+=ZA=t+—8H 1,480,349,830 148,035 3,127,846 3,275,881
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

Notes:

(@)

On || March 2010, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of 200,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for cash to independent investors at a price of
HK$0.45 per share.

On 23 June 2010, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of 71,437,476
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for cash to independent investors at a price of

HK$0.255 per share.

On 9 August 2010, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of 205,724,97 |
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for cash to independent investors at a price of
HK$0.165 per share.

On || November 2010, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of
246,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for cash to independent investors
at a price of HK$0.18 per share.

e MBRRMEE

28. B& (&)

BizE

(a) R-Z-ZFZA+—H AQAEE
045 TR ERABREERLER
%474 ££200,000,0008% & fX E 5£0.10
BT EBEBRABERE -

by R-ZTB-—ZESA-F+=0 ' A2FK
FRR0.2655B TR ERRBLIREER
BN EAITA 171,437,476 B E A
0108 T2 ZEBBUBRERE ©

l©) RZZB-—ZENANB  RDAEEK
01%%%%?%ﬁﬁi&ﬁ%ﬁ%&
% T4 $£205,724,971 Ik R E(E0.10

T EBRABRBES o
(d R=-F-ZF+—B+—H8 ' AR7K

R m%mmﬁﬁmﬁiﬁéﬁm%
R %17 & £ 246,000,000/% & IR (&
0108 T2 ETBBIALIRE -
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29. RESERVES 29. R
The Group iy |
Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the consolidated AEBHBEYDFRHNEBEITAEL
statement of changes in equity on pages 35 to 37. TERERERE -
The Company PN
Convertible
note

equity Warrant

Share reserve reserve Accumulated
premium AR 2 & SRR losses Total

BiniB Rk BEEEE RAEE st
HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HK$O000
TRET  TET  TERT  TET  TER

(Note a)
(Ff5Ta)
At | January 2009 RZZEZNF—A—H 2,749,254 — 72278 (1,320,177) 1,501,355
Placement of new shares, FRE 3R -
net of expenses EHIBRF X 67,466 — — — 67,466
Issue of convertible note,  ZE{TA[RIRF -
net of expenses BNk A% — 67,240 — — 67,240
Issue of shares upon BRI RER
conversion of &7 -
convertible note, REN]S
net of expenses i 170,243 (67,240) — — 103,003
Expiry of warrants R B — —  (72278) 72,278 —
Loss for the year FREE — — — (16,468)  (16,468)

At 31 December 2009 N-BEAE+-A=1+—H 2986963 — — (1264367) 1,722,596
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29. RESERVES (Contd) 29. f#tE (&)

The Company (Contd) ARDR (&)

Share Share option Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total
R RE BREHE RABR st
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Pt & TERT TERT TER TER
(Note a)
(Bf#ta)
At | January 2010 RZZE-ZF
—H—H 2,986,963 —  (1,264,367) 1,722,596
Placement of new shares, BEMR 28(a),(b),
net of expenses B kR A (c) & (d) 122,982 = — 122,982
Equity-settled share- ISR
based payment 2 B3R 30 — 1,514 — 1,514
Issue of shares under share RIR AR &
option scheme, BITIRD -
net of expenses BNk A 30 17,901 (1,514) — 16,387
Loss for the year FNER = = (57,815) (57,815)
At 31 December 2010 R=-Z2-%F
+=-A=+—~H 3,127,846 —  (1,322,182) 1,805,664
Notes: Pz
(a)  The application of the Company’s share premium account is governed by Section (@) ARARNEERZEBXBBAFING
48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. &5 48BIEIRE
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Company has no reserves available for (b) RERMEEH  AREMLETES K
distribution to the shareholders. TR 2 s -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the group reorganisation during 2002, a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) of the Company was approved on 20 November 2002 by the
shareholders of the Company and became effective on 3 January 2003. The
Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years. The board of directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries and any other persons including consultants,
advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives to award the

participants who have made contributions to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time, without prior approval from the Company's
shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any |2 months period is not permitted to exceed
|% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, without prior
approval from the Company's shareholders. Options granted to any director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in issue
and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be subject to

prior approval by the Company's shareholders.

An amount of HK$ | is payable on the grant of an option. Options may be
exercised no later than ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier. The exercise price is determined by
the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the Company's shares on the date of grant, the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

grant and the nominal value of the shares on the date of grant.

Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—

—BEt-R=t—HLFE

30. ERESTE

REN_TT_FEG2EBEA &
ARBRRER-_ZT-_F+—-HA-1H
HE—EBAER S (T518)]) ¥R =
TE=F-A-HAER - AR TER
—HEM - ARAREZEARLERE
TRERES (BEARARENBARF
ZET) REMEMAL (BEZAA
B KEA BF HERE)  UR
BARARD - B EERBYHAKHE
fEHER 22 8E -

AEARABRREELIE - BEER
Mz BREMY R RO BETGHER
ARRTREETRM 230% @+ BRE
A+ @A REE TEMEAZERE
vk eBRODEETNERARARTE
BEIRMD21% - WETFARAREME
2 IZABABRIERRABES
AZEMBEAT ZBRERS k2K
HEERBARAEETRAZ0.1%
B4 EERE5,000,0004 T + BIMAEL
ARRRRELHE -

BERBEREAINIET - BREN AR
RERLRBMETFARFEZKRIER
A (ABRRERE) 178 - (TERERA
AREZETE  ATMERARABROHR
REBHZHME BRONERRHLA
M AEEEA 2 FHUmERROR
RERHzAE=2F 28R -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd) 30. BRAESE (B
(a) Movement in share option during the year: (a) FABREE

The closing price The weighted
of the Company’s average share
shares quoted from price of
the Stock Exchange the Company
BB AT
ARARGUAR  NETHRE

At3l [mmediately  Immediately

December before before

At Granted  Exercised 2010 thedate  the date
Name of category January 2010 during during R=8-%F  Exercise of grant  of exercise Date of
of participant Date of grant RZB-FE  theyer theyear TR price 3 2B exerdse
SRERNER RitAH -A-R FRERE FAEFE =t-A  fRE RUAMA TEANA KRN

HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT

Employees in aggregate 2 March 2010 — 54300,000 (54,300,000) = 0375 0.36 0.39 0375
R “2-3%=AH
Other in aggregate 2 March 2010 — 5440000  (5,440,000) — 0375 036 039 0375
ity st —2-2F=4-H

— 59,740,000 (59,740,000) -
The options granted during the year did not have any specified vesting FARENERETERESRE

period. i



30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

(®)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR

e MBRKRME

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

Fair value of share options and assumptions (b)

The fair value of share options granted under the share option scheme at
the date of grant was HK$0.02534 per share option, which was
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the

following inputs:

Volume weighted average stock price

at the date of grant HK$0.356
Exercise price HK$0.375
Expected volatility 87.71%
Risk free rate 0.06%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company over the expected option period. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value of the share

options granted.

The fair value of the goods and services received from person other than
employees cannot be estimated reliably. As a result, the fair value is
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the date

the person other than employees renders the services.

30. BRESE (2)

BRE A FERRR

REBRESSR L BREAT
ERRLBHAEENEKE
0.025348 7T * JyHRMH 1 2 — &F
MR EEARA TaARE

) AA

Al = -

RELBHENRZE
METSRE 03567 7T

1TEE 0375 T

KB 87.71%

i B ) 2 0.06%

TR ER IR B Y eV TR TR IR O IR IR
ARABENRERETE - T8

ERABRRCEDAEREXEMN
RER#E 2 AFE -

WHGEER ATHEm RS 22
FENRER A - RERFED
BARBATARZFEEALRE
HRG RS A FEEE -
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31

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 31.

During the year, the Group acquired the entire equity interests in the following

e MBRRMEE

W R B 2 R
ER - AEEWETATRAINMAAEE

companies: ol
Name of Place of Cash
Acquisition date acquired companies incorporation Principal activities consideration
KBRS FyBEAR AR kil B 3 3t TEXK RERE
HK$°000
TET
4 June 2010 International Stamps Hong Kong Motor vehicles owning 1,500
—ZT-ZFAMA & Coins Auction Limited BB B ARE
PEBEEERBEERAA
28 June 2010 Sunny Soar Investments British Virgin Islands Property investment 52,000
—ZT-ZTFXA Limited (with its subsidiaries, RBEXHES and investment holding
—+N\R Wise Sky Ltd., Freeman MERERKREER

Investment Holdings Limited,
Global Day Limited, Sharp

Castle Limited and

Victory Good Limited)
ABKREERRT

(G [F) EFff BB A F]Wise Sky Ltd. »
REKRERBERAF
ZBBERRF - REFRATA
RBABRRE)

Sunny Soar Investments Limited (“Sunny Soar”) was acquired so as to further
expand the Group's property portfolio in quality commercial premises which
would enhance a stable source of rental income and intensify the property

portfolio of the Group.

International Stamps & Coins Auction Limited was acquired with the aim to

acquire the motor vehicle which would be used for business purposes.

ARREARRR (AR HRE—F
BRASEMFEERREHERA N
MEBEMME - ZWBEMBRER
SRARR - BFgRcARENME

Ha -

PREBREEMBEARAADARGE
BRRMBATEMRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

The aggregate fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired
subsidiaries as at the dates of acquisition and their carrying value determined

in accordance with HKFRSs immediately before acquisition are as follows:

20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR

3. KEKWEBLQR (&)

e MBRKRME

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

BB AR AR EERAGBR
KBEHNAFERAERRERENHK
RELNET . ZRUERM 2 REELD

T
Major
Acquisition -
Sunny Soar
Fair value Total
TERE- Fair value
FHzATE AFEARE
HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TERT
Investment properties REME 51,000 51,000
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRB = 1,363
Other receivables H A & I SRR 856 891
Other payables H At fE T 508 (458) (490)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE (900) (900)
50,498 51,864
Goodwill on acquisition WEsmE 1,502 1,636
Total consideration BRE 52,000 53,500
Satisfied by: AT A XA -
Cash Be 52,000 53,500
Net cash outflow on acquisition Yig 2 #RE (52,000) (53,500)

In respect of the acquired subsidiaries, the fair value of other receivables

acquired was HK$891,000.

FTEEN BRI E » TEANEME
W18 7 A F{E A891,0005 7T °
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 3. WEBHEBLR (&)
The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to the synergies and REEENBERERREBSHELN
economies of scale expected to arise from the business combinations. It is not BRI R R ELE - BEHAERNE
expected that any element of the goodwill recognised will be deductible for EWEEMAMBRAEHOKND

income tax purposes.

The subsidiaries made no significant contribution to the revenue and results of MERARRNRERHASEN NG RE
the Group after acquisition. The revenue and results of these subsidiaries are BEBMIEAIR  BMERBREDE
also insignificant if the above acquisitions had been taken place at the beginning T ZEMNBARANKEREENT
of the year. X
32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. HEKBAR
2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
(Loss) Gain on disposal of interest HEMBLRER (BE)
in subsidiaries (Note a) Yz (Mizta) (35,796) 125,120
Loss on deemed disposal of BIEHEWBARER BB
interest in subsidiaries (Note c) (Mt c) = (151,708)
Loss on disposal of interest HERBEEER BB
in Cordoba Group (Note b) (M3 b) (11,783) —
Net losses on disposal of HEM B A R
interest in subsidiaries 2T (47,579) (26,588)
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 32. HEMBAR (&)

(a) Disposal of interest in subsidiaries (a) HEMBLAER
Net assets (liabilities) disposed of: BHEZFEE (BF) :
2010
—g-3%
Perfect
Time  Winport Others Total 2009
K%  Winport Hits B —BBRE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

TER TER TER TER TER

Investment properties 1% & ¥ 3

(note 14) (Hi3E 14) 117,173 — — 117,173 —
Property, plant and mE - BB RRE

equipment (note 15)  (KfzE 15) 35 21,160 — 21,195 —
Intangible assets BEEE — — — — 130,461
Other receivables HAth g i FRIE 437 54 — 49| —
Cash and cash RekRe

equivalents EME 636 = — 636 —
Other payables Hofth & 15 FUIE (863) — (22) (885) (38)
Tax payable JE TR K (582) — — (582) —
Deferred tax liabilities IEFEFIIE & &

(note 27) (Bt&E27) (6,926) — — (6,926) —

109,910 21,214 (22) 131,102 130,423

Release of translation i BRJE 5

reserve fE 794 — — 794 —
(Loss) Gain on disposal i & i} /& 2 ]

of interest in

#xmz (BR)

subsidiaries Yz (50,704) 14,786 122 (35,796) 125,120
Total consideration B|RE 60,000 36,000 100 96,100 255,543
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Year ended 31 December 2010 B Z =

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 32. HEMBAR (&)

(a) Disposal of interest in subsidiaries (Contd) (a) HEMBRAIER (&)
2010
—g-%%
Perfect
Time  Winport Others Total 2009
BX  Winport Hit @My —EThE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FER  FER  FER  FER  TEx
Satisfied by: ATRSIAAZ A :
Unlisted convertible ~ JF ETI AT R E &
notes (Classified as (DR
financial assets at NFEE
fair value through AB#®Z
profit or loss) MBEE) = = = — 255543
Listed shares iy &)
(Classified as (P ERE
financial assets at NFEE
fair value through A&
profit or loss) BsEE) 60,000 = = 60,000 —
Cash Be — 36,000 100 36,100 —
60,000 36,000 100 96,100 255,543

FRLEMBARER R RA

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of disposal

of interest in subsidiaries is as follows: SEERAFESTOT ¢

2010 2009

—R-%F —FENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TAERT FAT

Cash consideration HeRE 36,100 —
Cash and cash equivalents BEHERSE

disposed of kAR &%EE (636) —
Net inflow of cash and Be kR

cash equivalents FERAFHE 35,464 —
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Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(@)

Disposal of interest in subsidiaries (Cont'd)

()

(i)

In March 2010, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement
with a third party, Forefront Group Limited (“Forefront”), a listed
company in Hong Kong, to dispose of 100% issued share capital of
Perfect Time Investments Limited (“Perfect Time"), an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Jet Star Industries Limited, at an agreed consideration
which was satisfied by the issuance of 400,000,000 ordinary shares

in Forefront, valued at HK$0.15 per share at completion date.

In August 2010, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an individual third party, to dispose of 100% issued
share capital of Winport Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Radford Portfolio Management Limited, at an agreed consideration
which was satisfied by cash of HK$36,000,000 at completion date.

In May 2009, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement
with a third party, Marvel Century Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Mascotte Holdings Limited (“Mascotte”), a listed
company in Hong Kong, to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Richful
Zone International Limited together with its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Allied Loyal International Investments Limited, for a
consideration of HK$130,000,000. The consideration was satisfied
by the convertible notes issued by Mascotte (the “Mascotte
Convertible Notes”).

The Mascotte Convertible Notes were valuated on the date of

completion by an independent qualified professional valuer, Roma
Appraisals Limited at HK$255,543,000.

2010 5§ )EZ%UB%‘?HEEEE'RT

,?7\/\971 TR M5t

—BEt-R=t—HLFE

32. HEWEBRQR (&)

(a)

HENE AR (F)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R_F—FF=F Fr5EE
FohRNEBERLA (118
7] BRLDRE) FTLER

B HEARRRMEELE
MBARKEREFR DA
([BX]) 2 2BEBRITRAR
H2EWBARRBELER
AR BEREBBTKER
BHNEKRO015E T &1
400,000,0000% & 8 i% 37 1 ©

RZE—ZENA AEEH
BAAE=ZFFTLEE W
EXANRIRMEF2ENRB AT
Winport Limitedz 2 &f 2 3
TRAREZENBARER
BEEBEBRAR  HENKE
e & B S £36,000,000
AL o

RZZZNFHA  AEEHE
2% = 5 Marvel Century
Limited(B#& LT ARFHE
SEERAR(FHE] 82
BEMBAR) T ERBE
HEARAIERZFAELEM
BARIEHERARARIRE
2 &K B2 A Allied Loyal
International
Limited2 S # % - KE R
130,000,000/ 7T * AFHE
B RRER ((FEER
BRER]) AT o

BUYABHREXMGEMESH
RAEERARE S B Ak
BEBERTKEBNGBER
255,543,000 7T ©

[nvestments
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

wE Rk MR

32. HEMBAR (8

(b) Disposal of interest in Cordoba Group () HEREEE#ER
2010
—g-%%
HK$°000
TER
Cash consideration HeRE 120,000

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

RERBBRENEER BB -

2010
—g-%%
Notes HK$°000
Pt & Ti#n
Investment properties REME 14 604,672
Property, plant and equipment E R Y E 15 203,305
Other investments Hinig & 19 175,545
Interest in associates AR 186,581
Goodwill kS 1,636
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEMBEE 1,041
Loans receivable FEd & & 506,824
Financial assets at fair value BATESARR
through profit or loss ZMBEE 129,486
Other receivables H At fE Y 508 16,902
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeFE 84,508
Other payables H At &< 508 (3,420)
Tax payable JE 518 (56)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIEAE 27 (25,966)
Interest-bearing borrowings STEER (323,559)
Due to fellow subsidiaries eIl ? B /B8 2 R K18 (9,650)
Due to holding company JE AR A R R (150,000)
Net assets BEFE 1,397,849




20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B FE IR FTMIEE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(b) Disposal of interest in Cordoba Group (Cont'd)

Loss on disposal of interest in

Cordoba Group

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

32. HEMBAR (8

2010

—g-2%

HK$’000

TERT

Cash consideration BeRE 120,000
Net assets disposed of P& B ERE (1,397,849)
Non-controlling interests FEERER 575,752
Fair value of retained interest RBERLTE 690,314
(11,783)

There is no profit or loss attributable to recognising interest retained in

Cordoba Group at its fair value at the date when control is changed.

REHREHE AR VEFAR
BEEZREERYRFELR

o

)i
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

wE Rk MR

32. HEMBAR (8

(b) Disposal of interest in Cordoba Group (Cont'd) b) HEREEE#EE (&)
Analysis of net (outflow) inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of FHLETREERS 2 RE KRR
disposal of interest in Cordoba Group is as follows: SFEORH) RAFEITWT -
2010
—B-ZF
HK$’000
TER
Cash consideration HeRE 120,000
Cash and cash equivalents BEHERER
disposed of ReEE (84,508)
Net inflow of cash and Rekie
cash equivalents EFERNFR 35,492

As detailed in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company disposed of the Cordoba Convertible Note to Supreme Castle
for a consideration of HK$120,000,000.

In December 2010, Supreme Castle converted the Cordoba Convertible
Note into 200,000,000 Cordoba Shares at the conversion price of
HK$0.60 per Cordoba Share, which constitutes a dilution of the Group’s
interests in Cordoba Group. Accordingly, the Company's approximately
55.27% equity interests in Cordoba Group was diluted to approximately
49.38% of the enlarged issued share capital of Cordoba and Cordoba

Group became an associate of the Company thereafter (see note 20).

REREMBERERM 16 FR - R
A & BA £ 8 120,000,000/ T [A]
Supreme Castlel} & FE AR E
I o

RZE—-FF+=A
Castle A B HE K7 0.60 T 2
BMRESTEITRARERERA
200,000,000/ F 7= iz 7 + %58 A
SERREEENESR - At - K
RAMBREERREAND
55.27 % #EZE RMELBEAL BITR
A%149.38% - B HEEEKRE
ARZBERNT (RHFE20)

* Supreme
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

©

Deemed disposal of interest in subsidiaries in year 2009

2010 5§ )EZ%UB%‘?HEEEE'RT

,?7\/\971 TR M5t

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

32. HEMBATE (&)

(c)

R-ZEZNFRELEMNB AR

Bk

2009

“TTNE

HK$'000

TET

Increase in non-controlling interests FETE R 2 1 601,708
Loss on deemed disposal of RIELE

interest in subsidiaries MEBARER BB (151,708)

Total subscription monies receivable FEUN R BE R IE 48 5B 450,000

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of deemed

disposal of interest in subsidiaries is as follows:

?ﬁ’ﬁﬂj%fﬂﬂ%’&?}%ﬁéﬁ’ﬂfﬁ(ﬁ&iﬁ
ZERNFEIMWT :

Subscription monies received B R ER

100,000

In September 2009, Cordoba and Ristora Investments Limited (“Ristora”),
an independent third party of the Company, entered into the
subscription agreement pursuant to which the Cordoba agreed to issue
and Ristora agreed to subscribe for 750,000,000 subscription shares of
Cordoba for the subscription price of HK$450,000,000, which constitutes
a deemed disposal of the Group's interests in Cordoba Group. The
disposal was completed on |5 December 2009. Accordingly, the
Company's 100% equity interests in Cordoba Group was diluted to
55.27% of the enlarged issued share capital of Cordoba as at the date of

completion.

N_ZETENFNA  REERAF
?@1%E7§Ristora Investments
Limited( [ Ristoral ) & 3Z & B 1

» HER ZEITMRIstoraR B R
E% 112 750,000,000/ 32 8 i% 17
R & B £450,000,0008 T © BR
BELEASERREEEMNE
@ HER-ZEAF+-ATH
Ay ° At A2 Tﬁﬁ%ﬁi’ﬁ’i
B2 HRERTKEAEEE
BRBARCEITRAL55.27% ©
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33.

34.

35.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

In December 2010, Cordoba, an associate of the Company, entered into a
subscription agreement with a third party, Hennabun Capital Group Limited
("Hennabun”), pursuant to which Cordoba agreed to issue and Hennabun
agreed to subscribe 400,000,000 Cordoba Shares with a par value of HK$0.10
each for a consideration of HK$240,000,000. The consideration was satisfied by
40,000,000 new shares of Hennabun with a par value of US$0.10 each. The
disposal was completed on 29 December 2010 and accordingly, the Company’s
49.38% equity interest in Cordoba Group was diluted to 40.71% of the
enlarged issued share capital of Cordoba as at the date of completion resulting
in a loss of HK$18,971,000.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

As detailed in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the disposal
of 100% equity interest in Perfect Time and its wholly-owned subsidiary for an
agreed consideration was satisfied by the issuance of 400,000,000 ordinary
shares of Forefront with the fair value of HK$60,000,000 at completion date.

COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following capital

commitments:

33.

34.

35.

mEMBRRMEE

REHERE A R#ER

RZZE-—ZFF+ZR RRRIZHER
A FEE FE = 5 Hennabun
Group Limited ([Hennabun]) T3 ¢ %
& - TERAEETMHennabunF E R
#£400,000,000/% F A2 EE0.10/8 T
mif - KRB &240,000,000% 7T+ BA
40,000,000f% & Az @ & 0.10% T #)
Hennabun¥i k2 ff - HERZZE—FTF
TZAZTABRER - MR T B R
NRAFHREEERERSH49.38% %8
ENREBACHETRE24071% - &
$18,971,000/8 7T 2 B 18

Capital

TEFRRERS

RIZAMBERRME320)MFM - HE
BERE2ENBARZIEEZHTE
KRELATKE B 87 317400,000,000/%

LBMER - H2¥{E/R60,000,000%
o

%

BARMXAE

RERPLER  AEBFUTERAK
o

2010 2009
—2-2F “ERNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Contracted but not provided, net of EETAERR
deposit paid in the consolidated mMEMBHRERTIREE
financial statements BEHRENEZESE 124 62,314




2010 4R )EZ%UIB%‘?HEEFE'RT
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& 7J ey e

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

35. COMMITMENTS (Contd) 35. BB (&)
Commitments under operating leases — the Group as lessee REBPORE - *EBHERARHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease REGBEER  AREREABLE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office REZTAHBELEHANNEN KRR K
equipment, which are payable as follows: EHEELEMT
2010 2009
-5  -TINE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T TET
Within one year —5R 1,894 68
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEELF (BHEEEMEF) 902 318
2,796 386
Commitments under operating leases - the Group as lessor REBOAE-FAKEFERAERA
At the end of the reporting period, the future aggregate minimum rental REFHBEER  BETAIHELEHE
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: HNEBARZERSBENAT
2010 2009
= “ERNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fitn FET
Within one year —FR — 21,992
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEELF (PDEEEMT) = 1,637
— 23,629
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36.

37.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company had provided
corporate guarantees for banking facilities amounting to HK$359,797,000
granted to its associates, Cordoba Group, (2009: HK$320,330,000 granted to
its subsidiaries), which were utilised to the extent of HK$316,059,000 (2009:
HK$282,868,000). The directors assessed the overall exposure of the
corporate guarantees granted by the Company and considered that the fair
value of such corporate guarantees is immaterial to the financial statements of

the Group and the Company.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37.

At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the Group with the
following carrying values have been pledged to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group:

e MBRRMEE

ZARE

REFHLEER  AEERARAEHR
HBE AR EEEER 2 RITRE
369,797,0008 7 (ZETNE - EA
A JE 1% 47 17 B £ 320,330,000% 7T) 12 £
AEIER HPEHARMER
316,059,000% T (= E T /1 F
282,868,000/ T) - EE M AR AK
HZARIERZERBER  RAZER
AERZATEREAEBRAARZH
BRRBEN -

BERA

REFNEER  ARECHERETE
ENERAESEME-RROTRE - 5
BEEREBENT :

2010 2009

—2-%F ZEENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT TERT

Leasehold land and buildings ME T RETF = 90,646
Investment properties BREWME = 521,600
Yacht i — 71,500
— 683,746
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

following related party transactions were entered into by the Group during

the year:

(@)

During the vyear, two properties of the Group were occupied by a
brother of a director of the Company for free for business of the Group.
These properties were held by Cordoba Group which ceased to be a

subsidiary of the Group as detailed in note 32(b).

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

38. HEALRSZ

BREEMBRRABEEI  AKHE
RERETIHEALRZMT

(@) FA  AEEMBENFEHALRE—
FESZRAREER  ARAK
BT - ZENEATEEE RM
H32b)f - REEEIBAA
EEZHMBRR)FE -

b) TBEEEBABZME

FN BTESREMTIRERE

management during the year is as follows: KEZHMEMT :
2010 2009
-85  _—TThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #r& » 2B M EWF &= 1,680 3,360
Contributions to MPF Scheme sRTE R 2K 37 45
1,717 3,405

The remuneration of executive directors and key management is
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.

Further details of executive director's emoluments are included in note

10.

RTEERTBEEEBCMEmF
MEEE2EEAIARZRART
SBB LR

BTEEMEHBERIEI0-
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

©

During the year, a personal guarantee of HK$20,000,000 (2009:
HK$20,000,000) was provided by a brother of a director of the
Company for a banking facility granted to a subsidiary of the Cordoba

Group which ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group as detailed in note

32(b).

Following the disposal of interest in Cordoba Group as detailed in note
32(b),
HK$ 150,000,000 to Cordoba. Loan interest income earned during the

the Group has granted an interest-bearing loan of
year was HK$82,000. The loan is repayable within one year. In addition,
the Group had provided corporate guarantees for banking facilities
granted to Cordoba Group as detailed in note 36. The corporate

guarantee fee earned during the year was HK$52,000.

During the year, the Cordoba Group has granted an interest-bearing loan
of HK$65,000,000 (2009: HK$ Nil) to Double Smart Finance Limited, a
then associated company of the Group. Loan interest income earned

during the year was HK$605,000 (2009: HK$ Nil).

mEMBRRMEE

38. BEALRE (B)

(c)

FRAAE—REZZHRAAR
EEE (RM 20 st - i
SETBRASEZHBAR) —F
MEBARMERRITRERMEEA
¥ {% 20,000,000 T (Z T E N
F 1 20,000,000/ 7T) °

RS20 EREEEE
mE o ASERNRERHE
150,000,000 L 2 5T EE R  F
MR 2 B 5 A 8 1A 582,000
Lo RERBR—EREE - It
oh - kT EES6RE M - AR B HE
SEERIRTRERMRAAE
R-FRARDZAREREAR
52,0005 7T

FA - REEERDARBERA

Al (REBE R 2 BE D R) REE
B B 365,000,0008 T (ZEZAN
F ) c FRRIMZEHFEBA
£605,0008 7T © (ZFETNF -
) o

v
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise of
interest-bearing bank and other loans, cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial instruments such as
loans receivable, other receivables and payables, available-for-sale financial
assets, and financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

which arise directly from its business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk, equity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group does not have any written risk management policies and guidelines
except for loans receivable. However, the board of directors generally adopts
conservative strategies on its risk management and limit the Group's exposure
to these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews and agrees

policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's cash and short-term deposits and loans receivable.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest

rate risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2009: 100 basis points) higher or lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group's net loss would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$4,693,000 and HK$ 1,550,000 respectively (2009: net profit would decrease
or increase by approximately HK$355,000 and HK$2,422,000 respectively).

Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—

—BEt-R=t—HLFE

39. XEAREEEERBEK

AEEZTESRIA FTETARIN
BRABRTRAMER  ReREH
BR-ZEeRIAZIEREDARR
SEZEBEERE  -AEEAREE
theEMTA NERAEXBELZE
WER - Et R REMRE - 7
HHEMBEENRR DV EF AR
ZMBRERRAE -

AEEeRIAMEEZTEZRRAT

%‘W%ﬂﬁ‘%$gﬁﬂﬁ‘ﬁ
EHM HBELER - REEKER
ﬁ@%%’$%lﬂ%&ﬁ%¥2@%
ERBERES - Al EFE Kt
HRBREEBRIURTRE  IHAEE
FEEZRBBRHICHEKTE -EF€
RIRREER L& ERR 2 HEHR
R ERBRZBENT -

FEER
AEBRMEEHMAZE SRR T
EEEB S REHRERARERETE
B AEEYRERITES R T 5P
HM R -

RERNLEEH - WFIX LA TRI00
B2 (—TZNF - 1000E2) Mt
%ﬁ“5$h$“ AEEZFEER

> Al R A 3K 32 00 49 4,693,000 T R
15%0%%%6777ﬂ¢ w5
Bl & 2 3 & 4 355,000% T K
2,422,000/ 7T) °

135



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2010 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE =T —ZF+_A=1+—HIEFE

136

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 100 basis points (2009: 100 basis points) increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the reporting

period. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2009.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk because of securities
investments listed outside Hong Kong, and other receivables from third parties
which are denominated in US dollars. Management considers that the Group
has limited exposure to foreign currency risk since such financial instruments

are not significant at the end of the reporting period.

e MBRRMEE

3. MXEAREEEERBEK

TRFREANM BT BRI EEE
REGPETEEL  YERREHE
ARZARELHESRIAREL L
MR o B0 100EES (= F
FNF 10012 %) 15 E BB EM =
REET-—SE2RBEEEHRA A
BA R - _TTNF2HMNHENA
REERETT -

Sh LB
AEERFERERIILMEFRER
H it YR =77 5B (AR TTAHE) ik
EONERR - EXNZSTERIARZR
PEEATFEXN  ERERRAAKHE
AEZINERRAR -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading of listed
securities and unlisted convertible bonds classified as investments held for
trading and investments designated as at fair value upon initial recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. The sensitivity analysis has been

determined based on the exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted market prices of the trading
securities had been 5% (2009: 15%) higher or lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s net loss would decrease or increase by
approximately HK$101,676,000 (2009: net profit would increase or decrease by
approximately HK$132,952,000) as a result of changes in fair value of

investments.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the reasonably
possible changes in the stock market index or other relevant risk variables had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed that
the fair values of the Group’s investments would change in accordance with
the historical correlation with the relevant stock market index or the relevant
risk variables, that none of the Group's securities investments would be
considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible decrease in the
relevant stock market index or other relevant risk variables, and that all other
variables remain constant. The stated changes represent management's
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market index
or the relevant risk variables over the period until the next annual end of the

reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

Year ended 3| December 2010 HHZE—
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3. BIXEREEEEREE (&)

RAERER

AEEZRAERRERTIKBHESTS M
BRABRAC D ERFBEEEZ LT
BH R LM A RRES R ERERE
EERRAFEIRZRERE - HU
M HDERAARE RAERERE

iE °

RERPLEER  WEEZHF2MER
BEALTREI5% (ZEENEF : 15%)
MEMAELZELFTIE  KXREF
BEEREEZ AT EEEMM DL
M#101,676,0008 L (ZEENEF : &
Tl #5182t e 4 #9132,952,000/8 7T) °

HREIM BT NRREMEHRE
tRBRREE AR AREHNER
HESHERRE  YEKAEDHEN
R&ZBEEZBRAERRER - RAEERR
AEERBERZATFEEREEMAR
hmﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%zﬁi@%%

g YBRITAEEZEFRELSE
ﬁﬁ@ﬂ MiERRE AR REE 2
AEAURTHMBE/CTHE  TRR
FAERMEERIFETE - MR8
EEERBFERERM AR B
EREENEE T —FEZHRNEER
HEABIRED - —TTNF2H
M DR R E T -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loans receivable and an
amount due from an associate. The carrying amounts of these balances
substantially represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk at the

end of the reporting period.

Management has money lending policies in place and the exposure to the
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group provides financial
services only with recognised, and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to borrow money are subject to credit

verification procedures.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each borrower. The default risk of the industry and country
in which borrowers operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration of
credit risk as 35% (2009: 52%) of the total loans receivable were due from the

Group's five largest borrowers.

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited in financial
institutions and brokers, which are leading and reputable and are assessed as
having low credit risk. The Group has not suffered any significant losses arising
from the non-performance by these parties in the past and management does

not expect this position to change in the future.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the consolidated financial
statements, which is net of impairment losses, represented the Group’s
exposure to credit risk without taken into account the value of any collateral

obtained.

mEMBRRMEE

3. BIXEREEEEREE (&)

FERR

A%
AEBERAREERERNERRE
WEERRFIE - ZSEHBZRAET
ERASERERPAEERMEAE L&
AEERMB -

BECEREENR T AHERX
XEERRZIEE - AREERERR
EREREZE=ZTRERERE - K
SEZRRAT  ARENEEETE
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#

%
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SERNERRERAZEREELE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Contd)

The Company

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from
subsidiaries and an associate. As at 31 December 2010, the Company had a
concentration of risk as 60% (2009:63%) and 100% (2009:100%) of the total
amounts are due from the Company's largest subsidiary and five largest

subsidiaries respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings. The Group
closely monitors its exposure to liquidity risk by reviewing the cash position
report on a daily basis and analysing the efficiency of fund management. The
maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting

period based on contractual undiscounted payments are summarised below:

2010 5§ )ﬂ%ﬂl@‘?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ?

7J TRk et

—BEt-R=t—HLFE

39. HBEREREREREK (&)

FERR (&)

¥ NG|
AREMEERRIEXRAEKKEBAR
ARBERBHIE - RZE—TF+=
ﬂ7+—a'$ TﬁWErKW%
G ENGIEA RBEERARE
FES EJi%eo%(_Nj# 63%) %
100% (ZZEFAF : 100%) °

RBETER

AEBZBERRERTIRARTREME
P HEASREMRBERZAREST
- AEESHEHASMHMNEE =

NERRBESAR Yo NEEER
Mo RERPEER - TEEHBE

1Eé7$%ﬁﬁﬁzﬁzﬂ%%ﬂﬁ
g

The Group AEW
Less than 3-12 Over
On demand 3 months months 2-5 years 5 years Total
BEX  SRMER 3ENfEA 1255 SEME @
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
TEx FTER TR FTEx FTER FTEx
Year ended BZ-2-ZFt-R
31 December 2010 St-BLEE
Other payables AR FA 307 2,261 899 — = 3,467
Tax payable FERB = = 28 = = 28
Financial guarantee HBER
contracts (note 36) a2 (K 36) 359,797 = = = = 359,797
360,104 2,261 927 — — 363,292
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e MBRRMEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES  39. BIBEMEEEERIE (&)
(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) RBEERR (&)
The Group (Contd) KEH (&)
Less than 3-12 Over
On demand 3 months months 2-5 years 5 years Total
REX SR3MEA 3ZNMEA 1256 SENE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TR TEL TAL TEL
Year ended BE_ZTNFTCA
31 December 2009 =T-BIEFE
Interest-bearing
borrowings SRR 343477 — = — — 343477
Other payables B3R 1915 6,390 3,191 — — 11496
Tax payable EMBT — — 688 — — 688
345,392 6,390 3879 — — 355,66
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The Group (Contd)

The amounts repayable under a loan agreement that includes a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time are
classified under the “on demand” bracket. In this regard, interest-bearing
borrowings of HK$NIl (2009: HK$343,477,000) as at the end of the reporting
period have been so classified even though the director do not expect that the
lender would exercise its rights to demand repayment and thus these
borrowings, which include payment of interest, would be repaid according to

the following schedule as set out in the loan facilities:

2010 5§ )ﬂ%ﬂl@‘?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ?

7J TRk et

—BEt-R=t—HLFE

3. BIXEREEEEREE (&)

RBEEER ()
FEH (%)

BIEER S HARTEEAREEE
TBERS R B R0 o) IR SRR +
SERIEER M- RUTE EF
BHERATEOES EEAERE
RoHBEREEL (CEEAF

343,477,000 L) - BEREHRMLEER
De At - AW ZSER(BER
B BIREE R E 5 A T B R

BE

Less than 3-12 Over
On demand 3 months months 2-5 years 5 years Total
BERX SR 32128 A 1255 SEME @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR TER TER TR TER
Year ended BZ-2-ZFt-R
31 December 2010 =+-ALEE — — — — — —
Year ended HE_ZTHNETZA
31 December 2009 =t-HIEEE — 5717 28974 124793 183993 43477
The Company ERAH
At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s other payables and financial RERPLEER - RATEMERNK
guarantee contracts of HK$2,145,000 and HK$359,797,000 (see note 36) ER B BERE D A F2,145,000% T

(2009: HK$8,269,000 and HK$320,330,000) were due on demand respectively.

The amounts include above for financial guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts of the guarantees shown in the earliest period in which the
guarantees could be called. Based on the past history and expectations at the
end of the reporting period, the directors do not consider it probable that a
claim will be made against the Group and the Company under these

guarantees.

359,797,000 7T (R K1536) (ZZE &
T4 1 8,269,000% 7T K 320,330,000/
L) ARERER -

EXHEEBMBERSONFERA
EHERANRERRATERTAS
BREBELBREINZGNEEAN
Bl EERAAEERKRAFFSAA
RERASHERERE -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Fair value
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at
fair value at 31 December 2010 across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair
value of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The

levels are defined as follows:

C Level | (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments;

*  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market
data;

C Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in

which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

39.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES  39. BIBEMEREBEREBEK (&)
(Cont'd)

Assets measured at fair value ROFEFAENEE
2010 Level | Level 2 Level 3
—E2-%2F 1R HE28R EK
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT FERT TERT TERT
Financial assets at fair BATEGABR
value through profit or loss: ZEMBEE -
Listed equity securities EHRARE 5 622,245 622,245 — —
Listed bond EHES 3,920 3,920 — —
Unlisted convertible bonds I LT AR E S 51,677 — 51,677 —
2009 Level | Level 2 Level 3
—EENF 1R F21 £33
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Financial assets at fair BAFESFARR
value through profit or loss: ZMBEE -
Listed equity securities ETRAE S 837,096 837,096 —
Unlisted derivative FEEMITE
financial instruments TR TE 12,766 — 12,766 —
Unlisted convertible bonds ¥ LM BmRES 36,485 36,485
During the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, there were no transfers BE_Z-ZER-_ZTTNFT-A=
between Level | and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into +T—HLEEE  F1REFE2RATER
and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. EvRYEESR  TUREAEIRLT

EFfEXBEIRATEFEEDL -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Capital management

The objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to provide returns for shareholders.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividends to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. The capital structure of the Group
consists of net debts, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company (comprising share capital, and reserves). No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 6 March 201 1,

a special resolution in respect of the share consolidation and the capital

reduction of the Company (the “Capital Reorganisation”) were approved by

the shareholders. The Capital Reorganisation became effective on 17 March

2011 and its effects were as follows:

(@)

Under the capital reduction, the authorised share capital of the Company
was reduced from HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each to HK$20,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 reduced
shares of HK$0.002 each and the reduction was effected by way of
cancellation of HK$0.098 of the paid up capital on each issued share of
HK$0.10 and by reducing the nominal value of each issued or unissued
share of the Company from HK$0.10 per share to HK$0.002 per
reduced share. Accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced from HK$148,034,983 to HK$2,960,699.66 divided into
296,069,966 adjusted shares, giving rise to a total credit of
HK$145,074,283.34 which was, in its entirety, credited to the share

premium account of the Company.

Under the share consolidation, every 5 reduced shares of HK$0.002 each
was consolidated into | adjusted share of HK$0.01.

20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR

e MBRKRME

Year ended 3| December 2010 HE-Z—TF+-_A=+—HIFE

40. ERPARER

R-F-——F=A+RBEFTZARA
BREIAE  BRALXBKRMDEH R
BARHIR (TRAEA]) 2 BRIRERE
BRERYE - REAEAR_—T——F=H
TERER  FEMT

(a)

BERAER  ARBREER
A | 1,000,000,000% T 5 B
10,000,000,000/% & B E {B0.1075
TL B9 A% 7 B % 220,000,000/ 7T 5
4 10,000,000,000% & & B &
0.0028 LRI HIRMR D - FRAK
BREEI10ETHEEITRG 2
BRI AFEH0.098B T R B AR A
BRAFEZEBIIARBTROEE
AERRH0.10B TR EFRE
BIR A% 170.00278 7T © Bt ARA]
B %178k 7 148,034,983 T A
2 2,960,699.66% T 2 A
296,069,966/ X AE R - #
E 4 i Bk 48 %8 145,074,283.34%
T REEARRRIRMDEER
BEROEH  BSREREE
0.0027%8 LB & HI R AR 7 & 0 B —BR
EE0.0TATHERERR -
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41. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 41, EBRYF
Comparative figures of 31 December 2009 and | January 2009 have been HRENERNF2MERE 2T 2K
adjusted or reclassified as a result of retrospective application of new R DHABAEHOIBE_TTNFTZ
accounting policies as disclosed in note 2. A=+—BRZZEFAF—A—HAzK
BHUTF -
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Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements

and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

20103 EAIEBRIZERBERAR

MHEREE

UTATEERBERAMBFE 2 RERE
ENRAERE  BREEEZ
KEZEHDME -

HAPBRERL

RESULTS £
Year ended 3| December
BEt-A=+t-HLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-EFf _"ZTTNF C"TIN\F _ITTLF _ITITRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET FET TERT
(restated) (restated)
(£31) (£31)
Turnover EXH 55,698 94,451 (341,209) 104,928 2,192
(Loss) Profit before taxation ~ BREEAI (E1E) & A (192,694) 133,285 (786,745) (197,582) (114761
Taxation IR (2,905) (3,940) (11,083) — —
(Loss) Profit for the year Fr (B8) &5 (195,599) 129,345 (797,828) (197,582) (114761)
Non-controlling interests R 26,314 — — — —
(Loss) Profit attributable to ~ AAFAERFE A
equity holders of the i (&#E)
Company i Fl (169,285) 129,345 (797,828) (197,582) (114761
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-ZF C—ZTNF ZTTN\F CZTTLF ZTEIRN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET T THET THET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(£7) (Z351) (Z751) (Z31)
Investment properties REME — 638,773 609,814 326,500 7,200
Property, plant and equipment  #)3 * BB Rk 5,343 224,805 194,961 35,049 22977
Intangible assets EVEE — — 131,879 134,626 —
Other investments Hip#hE — 146,430 123,521 113,965 —
Interest in associates kNG 583,281 183,459 — — 98,118
Available-for-sale I HE
financial assets MBEE 26,020 27,061 — — —
Prepayments for acquisition REREME
of investment properties ARNRE = — 5,304 8,656 —
Loans receivable ERER 4,000 13,849 15,720 — —
Current assets mEEE 1,373,487 1,632,594 814,923 1,229,522 232,856
Current liabilities mEAGE (3,495) (307,553) (330,170) (361,853) (31,537)
1,988,636 2,559,418 1,565,952 1,486,465 329,614
Equity holders’ funds ERBAEAER 1,988,636 1,928,312 1,540,513 1,486,465 329,614
Non-controlling interests ST = 601,708 — — —
Deferred tax liabilities BEERBEAR — 29,398 25,439 — —
1,988,636 2,559,418 1,565,952 1,486,465 329,614
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